
GLIMCHER

Annual Report 2003



TABLE OF CONTENTS

2 Financial Highlights

5 Letter to Shareholders

9 Interview with the President

13 Index to Financial Section

55 Trustees and Officers

56 Shareholder Information

GLIMCHER REALTY TRUST is a leader in the ownership,

management, acquisition and development of enclosed regional and

super-regional malls and community centers. The Company is the

successor to The Glimcher Company, founded in 1959.

Since its initial public offering in January 1994, Glimcher has become

a larger, stronger, more diversified nationwide company with

prestigious anchor tenants and popular national and regional

retailers. At December 31, 2003, the Company owned or had a joint

venture interest in 70 properties located in 22 states, aggregating

approximately 27.1 million square feet of gross leasable area.

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements. See “Management’s Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” with respect to those factors that might cause

future events and actual results to differ from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements.
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2002 20012003

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(dollars in thousands, except per share and per square foot amounts)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Total Revenues $ 316,877 $ 267,959(1) $ 248,266(1)

Net income available to common shareholders $ 10,134 $ 24,421 $ 31,363

Funds from Operations (FFO)(2) $ 81,357 $ 77,728(3) $ 102,258(3)

Funds from Operations per Diluted Share $ 2.13 $ 2.17 $ 3.29

Weighted-Average Common 
Shares Outstanding - Diluted 38,221 35,748 31,048

Dividend per Common Share $ 1.92 $ 1.92 $ 1.92

Total Assets $ 1,837,423 $ 1,632,433 $ 1,758,519

OCCUPANCY - TOTAL PORTFOLIO

Mall Stores 89.6% 90.1% 85.6%

Community Centers 77.5% 75.5% 92.4%

COMPARABLE SALES PER SQUARE FOOT - 

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 

Mall Stores $ 304.69 $ 300.50 $ 292.57

Community Centers $ 252.57 $ 266.13 $ 259.13

AVERAGE BASE RENT PER SQUARE FOOT -

TOTAL PORTFOLIO

Mall Stores $ 23.54 $ 23.21 $ 23.23

Community Centers $ 6.30 $ 6.62 $ 5.86

For the purposes of computing occupancy statistics, anchors are defined as tenants whose space is equal to or greater
than 20,000 square feet of gross leasable area (“GLA”). All tenants spaces less than 20,000 square feet, and outlets, are
considered to be stores. The Company computes occupancy on an economic basis, which means only those spaces where
the tenant is open and/or paying rent are considered as occupied. Consistent with industry practice, mall statistics
include only stores, while community center statistics reflect the combined GLA including both anchors and stores.

(1) Certain reclassifications of prior period amounts, including the presentation of the statements of operations required
by Statement of Financial Accountants Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets”, have been made in the financial statements to conform to the 2003 presentation.

(2) Funds from operations have been restated in 2002 and 2001 to reflect early extinguishment of debt costs as a
component of interest expense in accordance with a new accounting standard, SFAS No. 145.

(3) A table is included as part of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations”, which illustrates the calculation of FFO and the reconciliation of FFO to net income available to 
common shareholders.
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(4) Glimcher Realty Trust’s core portfolio of regional malls continues to be the Company’s focus. As of December 31,
2003, malls accounted for 80.6% of total GLA and contributed 88.6% of Total Annualized Minimum Rents.

(5) Funds from Operations (“FFO”) for 2003 have increased more than 4.7% over 2002. Operating data for the
years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 are restated to reflect SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

We are pleased to report that 2003 was a successful year for

Glimcher Realty Trust. It was a year of significant progress as we

made great strides toward reaching our goals.

Over the past several years, we have successfully transitioned the

Company’s focus from primarily community centers to a stronger

portfolio comprised mainly of premium mall properties. This

strategic shift, as shown in the tables below, will offer greater long-

term value to shareholders.

Portfolio quality is at the center of our strategic vision at Glimcher

Realty Trust. Implementing this strategy necessitates a clear set of

objectives, including the following:

• Investing in new properties in the country’s top 100 metropolitan

areas, which have the potential to be the dominant location

within that trade area;

• Redeveloping existing properties within the portfolio to assure 

a premium shopping experience;

• Optimizing re-tenanting opportunities to introduce high-quality

retailers at current market rates and;

• Maintaining a diverse tenant mix to minimize exposure to 

any single retailer.
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Regional mall properties now constitute 80.6% of the portfolio’s gross leasable area and contribute 90.3% of the Company’s revenues.
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2003 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TENANTS

% OF TOTAL
ANNUALIZED

NUMBER OF GLA OF MINIMUM
TENANT NAME STORES STORES RENT

Limited Brands, Inc. 75 475,230 3.9%

Gap, Inc. 33 437,591 3.0%

Saks Incorporated 11 892,349 2.4%

Foot Locker Inc. 50 198,822 2.1%

JCPenney Company, Inc. 22 2,311,635 1.8%

Kmart Corporation 8 718,131 1.5%

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 11 870,181 1.5%

Sterling Inc. 31 44,433 1.5%

Zale Corporation 43 44,377 1.4%

Regal Cinemas 7 246,293 1.1%

Burlington Coat Factory 5 415,726 1.1%

Luxottica Group SPA 42 75,078 1.1%

Total tenants representing > 1.0% 338 6,729,846 22.4%

Total tenants in portfolio 27,061,465 100.0%

Tenants Representing > 1.0%
of Annualized Minimum Rent 24.9%

Just 12 tenants and their consolidated entities each contribute more
than 1.0% of Total Annualized Minimum Rents. In total, these tenants
represent 22.4% of annualized minimum rents and 24.9% of GLA.

The quality of Glimcher’s portfolio improved significantly during

2003 as a result of several transactions. The Company sold five

community shopping centers and a vacant Kmart anchor location.

Proceeds from these asset sales have been invested in stronger

growth opportunities. Our August 2003 acquisition of WestShore

Plaza in Tampa, Florida, is an example of an upscale, super-

regional mall, which fits our strategy of acquiring strong,

well-located properties and further enhances our presence 

in one of the country’s top growth markets.

Following on a plan we started in 2002, we have also been able to

make considerable advancement toward reaching our goal of

acquiring 100.0% ownership of all joint venture interests in our

portfolio. During 2003, the remaining 50.0% interest in Colonial

Park Mall in Harrisburg, PA and the remaining 80.0% interest in

Eastland Mall in Charlotte, NC were purchased, giving us 100.0%

ownership in both properties. Complete portfolio ownership is an

uncommon feat within the Real Estate Investment Trust industry.

When accomplished, it will provide us a cleaner, more transparent

financial statement presentation, a stronger balance sheet, and full

control of all leasing, management and capital expenditure

decisions. This will better enable us to increase the value of

these assets.

Capitalizing on our development expertise, we are identifying

selected opportunities for new development or re-development.

The acquisition of Eastland Mall in Columbus, Ohio, offers great

upside potential with re-development plans for interior

renovations and 30,000 square feet of village or externally-facing

retail space. Kaufmann’s has also announced plans to build a

120,000 square foot anchor store at this property.

This is truly an exciting time at Glimcher Realty Trust. The result

of our efforts over the last several years is a portfolio of mall

properties that are of exceptional quality. Although real estate

markets may have changed drastically during the last decade,

we can make shareholders, tenants, employees and community

stakeholders one very important promise – we continue 

to be dedicated to the ongoing growth and success of

Glimcher Realty Trust.
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Q: WHAT IS GLIMCHER REALTY TRUST?

A Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”), Glimcher Realty Trust 

is a recognized leader in the ownership, management, acquisition,

leasing and development of premium enclosed regional and 

super-regional malls and community shopping centers. At the 

close of 2003, the Company’s portfolio consisted of 70 properties

comprising 27.1 million square feet of gross leasable area. Of this,

the Company’s mall portfolio accounted for 21.8 million square feet

of GLA and its community center properties totaled 5.2 million

square feet of GLA.

Q: WHAT IS GLIMCHER’S PRIMARY BUSINESS OBJECTIVE?

Glimcher’s primary business objective is to achieve growth in Net

Income and Funds From Operations (“FFO”) by developing,

redeveloping or acquiring properties; by improving the operating

performance and value of the existing portfolio through selective

expansion and renovation of its properties; and by maintaining high

occupancy rates, increasing minimum rents per square foot of GLA

and aggressively controlling costs.

Q: WHAT ARE THE SIGNIFICANT ELEMENTS OF A PREMIUM MALL
PROPERTY?

Our focus is to build a complement of activities that the targeted

demographic market is seeking. Most of our properties offer

premium retail amenities for shoppers to enjoy, such as dining,

theaters, family-friendly entertainment, children’s play areas and a

host of other conveniences. Our properties are large, clean, easy to

find and easy to shop. A dominant location and a fresh retail mix are

the keys to maintaining shopper loyalty.

Q: CAN YOU SHARE SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL GOALS ACHIEVED
DURING 2003?

Financial achievements during 2003 were as follows:

• Reduced debt-to-market capitalization ratio to 55.5% 

from 57.9% in 2002;

• Refinanced substantial portions of long-term debt at 

favorable interest rates;

• Converted total debt from 70.9% fixed rate and 29.1% variable rate

to 84.1% fixed rate and 15.9% variable rate;

• Reduced interest expense 5.6%;

• Reduced debt by $18.6 million with proceeds from sales 

of community centers.

Q: WHAT SIGNIFICANT FINANCING TRANSACTIONS OCCURRED
DURING 2003? 

In conjunction with several financial institutions, the Company has

entered into a new $150.0 million revolving line of credit, which

expires in October 2006. This will be used to facilitate the funding of

working capital requirements.

Glimcher Realty Trust also completed a $60.0 million public offering

of 2,400,000 shares of 8.75% Series F Cumulative Redeemable

Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest to raise capital in August 2003.

Q: CAN YOU MENTION CURRENT DEVELOPMENT AND
REDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES IN PROGRESS FOR GRT?

Currently, one development opportunity exists in Cincinnati, OH.

There is land under contract and pre-development costs are being

incurred for development of a department store anchored 

retail project.

In addition to the Eastland Mall expansion, other endeavors were

underway in 2003 that will continue in 2004, such as the Lloyd

GateWay project at Lloyd Center in Portland, OR. This project

involves upgrading the two-block area immediately north of the

property by renovating and re-mixing approximately 30,000 square

feet of village shops contiguous to the mall with restaurants, banking

services, etc. Ross Dress for Less is also scheduled to open in 2004

and will occupy Lloyd Center’s last available anchor position. At The

Mall at Fairfield Commons in Beavercreek (Dayton), OH, an 84,000

square foot Galyan’s Sporting Goods is expected to become the sixth

anchor. This expansion is also expected to include the addition of

10,000 square feet of village shops, adjacent to the mall.

Q: GLIMCHER’S STRATEGY IS TO BECOME THE DOMINANT REIT IN
SELECTED MARKETS ACROSS THE U.S. WHY HAS GLIMCHER
IDENTIFIED MARKETS SUCH AS TAMPA, FL, SEATTLE, WA, AND
COLUMBUS, OH AS THE CENTERPIECE OF ITS STRATEGY?

Acquisitions and development in markets where Glimcher can

maintain a dominant position will generate a higher return for 

our shareholders. Glimcher recognizes the need for super-regional

upscale mall properties within these markets as suburbs enlarge and

demographics shift. We also acknowledge the fact that high-quality

retailers are also targeting these areas of growth. This strategy will

allow Glimcher to become a leader in this specific market and

provide additional upside potential for shareholders.
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Growth in these markets is also positive. Between 2003 and 2008:

• All markets in which Glimcher malls operate project double-digit

growth in average household income.

• Average population growth for all MSA’s in the mall portfolio 

is 6.51%, which outpaces the national growth trend of 5.25%.

• All markets for Glimcher malls project growth in number of

households ranging from 1.42% to 10.86%.

Q: ARE THERE ANY INTANGIBLES THAT HAVE AN IMPACT ON THE
SUCCESS OF GLIMCHER?

A talented team of people with diverse expertise and experience 

has allowed the Company to be successful and innovative.

We are continually adding quality people to further enhance 

our organization. Glimcher is committed to strengthening the

organization by developing its intellectual capital. The Company 

is not just about bricks and mortar; it’s about the people that 

make the business successful.

Q: CAN YOU PROVIDE SOME INSIGHT REGARDING DIVIDENDS?

Our dedication to maximizing shareholder value continues.

The annualized cash dividend to common shareholders is $1.9232

per share. Our average common share dividend yield of 8.6% in

2003 is, again, among the highest in our REIT peer group, even with

the previously reported second quarter 2003 fluctuation in earnings.

Maintaining the safety of our quarterly dividend of $0.4808 per

share is a key priority. Our strong portfolio of properties should

enable us to maintain future dividends at this level.

A $100 investment at the IPO, with dividend reinvestment, would have
grown to $248 today.

Q: WHAT IS GLIMCHER’S POSITION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE?

Glimcher takes corporate governance seriously. In accordance 

with and in anticipation of meeting regulatory requirements 

for compliance, the Company has taken the following actions:

• Implemented a policy stipulating that only independent 

directors are permitted to serve on the Nominating and 

Audit committees;

• Instituted an external hotline for whistle blowers, operated 

by a third party;

• Established guidelines to ensure all employees, from executives 

to staff members, conduct themselves according to the highest 

ethical standards.

Q: HOW DOES GLIMCHER GIVE BACK TO THE COMMUNITY?

Glimcher recognizes its corporate responsibility to the communities

in which we operate. Each year we support these communities

through a number of events including The Magical Night of Giving.

Now in its sixth year, this event continues to grow in popularity with

both retailers and consumers. In 2003, over 220,000 community

patrons attended this event, raising over $1.1 million for non-profit

organizations in our communities. This was a 6.0 % increase over

the 2002 event.

Our employees do not just contribute financially to organizations in

need, but offer their time and talent to those in need. We are proud

of their dedication and involvement.

Q: CAN YOU PROVIDE ANY COMPANY INSIGHTS FOR 2004?

Enhancing Glimcher’s portfolio and our strong financial position

over the past several years has poised this Company for growth 

in 2004. Each development, redevelopment or acquisition will 

be assessed on an extreme strategic basis to ensure long-term

profitability for shareholders and to enhance the quality of

the portfolio.

We aim to continually increase the performance of our properties.

Ninety percent of the Company’s revenue and operating income will

be generated by regional and super-regional mall properties.

Through our focus on a portfolio of premium mall properties, we

expect to continue to produce a consistent, stable revenue stream.
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PROPERTY/LOCATION GLA ANCHORS/SPECIALTY ANCHORS 

Montgomery Mall
Montgomery, AL...................726,098 JCPenney, Parisian 

Weberstown Mall 
Stockton, CA .........................845,423 Barnes & Noble, Dillard’s, JCPenney, Sears 

University Mall
Tampa, FL...........................1,316,490 Burdines-Macy’s, Burlington Coat Factory, Dillard’s, JCPenney, Sears; Cobb Theater

WestShore Plaza
Tampa, FL...........................1,059,612 Burdines-Macy’s, JCPenney, Old Navy, Saks Fifth Avenue, Sears; AMC Theatres

The Great Mall of the Great Plains
Olathe, KS ............................ 811,208 Burlington Coat Factory, Foozles, Group USA, Jeepers!, Linens’n Things, Marshalls, VF Factory Outlet;

Dickinson Theatres

Ashland Town Center
Ashland, KY...........................441,618 Goody’s, JCPenney, Proffitt’s, Wal-Mart

Northtown Mall
Blaine, MN ............................816,118 Best Buy, Kohl’s, Mervyn’s California, Steve & Barry’s

Jersey Gardens
Elizabeth, NJ.......................1,291,014 Bed Bath & Beyond, Burlington Coat Factory, Cohoes Fashions, Daffy’s, DSW Shoe Warehouse/Filene’s

Basement, Gap Outlet, Group USA, Home Living, Jeepers!, Last Call, Marshalls, Nike Factory Store,
Off 5th-Saks Fifth Avenue Outlet, Old Navy; Loew’s Theaters 

Southside Mall
Oneonta, NY .........................225,615 JCPenney, OfficeMax

Eastland Mall
Charlotte, NC.....................1,064,605 Belk, Dillard’s, Sears; Ice House  

The Mall at Fairfield Commons 
Beavercreek/Dayton, OH...1,044,229 Elder-Beerman, JCPenney, Lazarus, Parisian, Sears

Eastland Mall
Columbus, OH......................939,830 JCPenney, Lazarus, Sears

Polaris Fashion Place
Columbus, OH...................1,579,554 The Great Indoors, JCPenney, Kaufmann’s, Lazarus, Lord & Taylor, Saks Fifth Avenue, Sears 

Dayton Mall
Dayton, OH .......................1,307,165 DSW Shoe Warehouse, Elder-Beerman, JCPenney, Lazarus, Linens’n Things, Old Navy, Sears

River Valley Mall 
Lancaster, OH........................571,849 Elder-Beerman, JCPenney, Lazarus, Sears, Steve & Barry’s; Regal Cinemas

New Towne Mall 
New Philadelphia, OH..........514,764 Elder-Beerman, JCPenney, Sears; Regal Cinemas

Indian Mound Mall 
Newark/Heath, OH...............557,863 Elder-Beerman, JCPenney, Lazarus, Sears; Crown Cinema

Lloyd Center
Portland, OR ......................1,440,737 Barnes & Noble, Marshalls, Meier & Frank, Nordstrom, Sears, Toys “R” Us; Lloyd Center Ice Rink,

Lloyd Mall Cinemas

Colonial Park Mall 
Harrisburg, PA ......................745,022 The Bon-Ton, Boscov’s, Sears  

The Mall at Johnson City 
Johnson City, TN ..................535,128 Goody’s; JCPenney; Proffitt’s for Her; Proffitt’s for Men, Kids & Home; Sears

Almeda Mall
Houston, TX........................796,643 Foley’s, JCPenney, Old Navy, Palais Royal, Ross Stores

Northwest Mall 
Houston, TX..........................794,126 Foley’s, OfficeMax, Palais Royal, Phil’s Shoes

SuperMall of the Great Northwest
Auburn, WA ..........................940,664 Ann Taylor Loft, Bed Bath & Beyond, Burlington Coat Factory, Gart Sports, Marshalls, Nordstrom, Old Navy,

Sam’s Club, Vision Quest

Morgantown Mall 
Morgantown, WV .................539,665 Elder-Beerman, JCPenney, Proffitt’s, Sears; Carmike Cinemas

Grand Central Mall
Parkersburg/Vienna, WV......908,238 Elder-Beerman, Goody’s, JCPenney, Proffitt’s, Sears, Steve & Barry’s; Regal Cinemas

THE GLIMCHER MALLSp12
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The following table sets forth Selected Financial Data for the Company. This information should be read in conjunction with the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations, each included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

OPERATING DATA (in thousands, except per share amounts):(1)

Total revenues $ 316,877 $ 267,959 $ 248,266 $ 207,711 $ 188,743

Operating income $ 106,599 $ 99,181 $ 91,057 $ 92,668 $ 86,554

Interest expense $ 81,355 $ 86,161 $ 85,760 $ 81,668 $ 61,292

Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated entities $ 2,143 $ 3,079 $ 2,040 $ 3,607 $ (4,570)

Interest income $ 209 $ 634 $ 1,187 $ 2,341 $ 1,530

Gain (loss) gain on sales of properties $ 2,156 — $ (610) $ 4,358 $ (12)

Minority interest in operating partnership $ 842 $ 2,334 $ 3,519 $ 2,365 $ 2,316

Income from continuing operations $ 26,754 $ 14,399 $ 5,005 $ 15,026 $ 22,111

Income from continuing operations per share common (diluted) $ 0.42 $ 0.14 $ 0.47 $ 0.56 $ 0.82

Net income $ 23,822 $ 36,254 $ 24,700 $ 40,950 $ 41,128

Preferred stock dividends $ 13,688 $ 11,833 $ 15,777 $ 22,469 $ 21,620 

Net income available to common shareholders $ 10,134 $ 24,421 $ 31,363 $ 18,481 $ 19,508

Per common share data: Earnings per share (diluted) $ 0.29 $ 0.75 $ 1.12 $ 0.78 $ 0.82

Distributions $ 1.9232 $ 1.9232 $ 1.9232 $ 1.9232 $ 1.9232

BALANCE SHEET DATA (in thousands):

Net property and equipment $ 1,699,007 $ 1,470,083 $ 1,549,681 $ 1,358,006 $ 1,374,965 

Investment in unconsolidated real estate entities $ 8,827 $ 23,047 $ 48,001 $ 137,691 $ 121,777

Total assets $ 1,837,423 $ 1,632,433 $ 1,758,519 $ 1,589,545 $ 1,585,608

Total long term debt $ 1,295,058 $ 1,095,930 $ 1,246,741 $ 1,069,466 $ 1,032,229

Redeemable preferred shares $ 127,950 $ 90,000 $ 90,000

Total shareholders’ equity $ 441,939 $ 426,492 $ 396,525 $ 339,947 $ 365,660

OTHER DATA:

Cash provided by operating activities (in thousands) $ 100,597 $ 67,600 $ 101,665 $ 75,168 $ 97,120

Cash (used in) provided by investing activities (in thousands) $ (200,229) $ 175,697 $ (57,882) $ 3,125 $ (12,621)

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities (in thousands) $ 99,363 $ (240,697) $ (40,488) $ (81,918) $ (84,409)

Funds from operations (2) (in thousands) $ 81,357 $ 77,728 $ 102,258 $ 76,910 $ 70,720

Number of properties (3) (4) 70 73 102 111 126

Total GLA (in thousands) (3) (4) 27,061 25,716 31,121 30,518 31,883 

Occupancy rate % (3) (4) 89.6% 88.9% 9.17% 93.6% 94.5%

(1) Operating data for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are restated to reflect the impact of Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144.

(2) FFO as defined by National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) is used by the real estate industry and investment community as a supplemental measure of the performance of real estate
companies. NAREIT defines FFO as net income (loss) (computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of properties, plus real estate related
depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. The Company’s FFO may not be directly comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other real estate
investment trusts. FFO does not represent cash flow from operating activities in accordance with GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP), as an
indication of the Company’s financial performance or to cash flow from operating activities (determined in accordance with GAAP), as a measure of the Company’s liquidity, nor is it indicative of funds available to
fund the Company’s cash needs, including its ability to make cash distributions. A reconciliation of FFO to net income available to common shareholders is provided in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

(3) The number of properties and GLA include properties, which are both wholly owned by the company or by a joint venture in which the Company has a joint venture interest. The joint venture interests which are
included range from 20 – 50%. Occupancy of the properties is defined as any space where a tenant is open and/or paying rent at the date indicated, excluding all tenants with leases having an initial term of less
than one year.

(4) The number of properties owned by joint ventures in which Company has an interest and the GLA of those properties included in the table are as follows: 2003 includes 2.0 million square feet of GLA 
(2 properties), 2002 includes 3.8 million square feet of GLA (4 properties), 2001 includes 7.6 million square feet of GLA (8 properties), 2000 includes 8.2 million square feet of GLA (9 properties) 
and 1999 includes 8.6 million square feet of GLA (10 properties).

(for the years ended December 31,)

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
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FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Glimcher Realty Trust (the “Company”) is a self-administered and
self-managed Maryland real estate investment trust, or REIT, which
commenced business operations in January 1994 at the time of its
initial public offering. We own, lease, manage and develop a 
portfolio of retail properties consisting of enclosed regional and
super regional malls (the “Malls”) and community shopping 
centers (the “Community Centers”). As of December 31, 2003, we
owned interests in and managed 70 properties, consisting of 25 Mall
Properties and 45 Community Centers (including four single tenant
retail properties) (the “Property” or, collectively, the “Properties”)
located in 22 states. The Properties contain an aggregate of
approximately 27.1 million square feet of GLA of which 
approximately 89.8% was occupied at December 31, 2003.

Our primary business objective is to achieve growth in net income
and funds from operations, or FFO, by developing and acquiring
retail properties, by improving the operating performance and
value of our existing portfolio through selective expansion and 
renovation of our Properties and by maintaining high occupancy
rates, increasing minimum rents per square foot of GLA and
aggressively controlling costs.

Key elements of our growth strategies and operating policies are to:

• Increase Property values by aggressively marketing available GLA
and renewing existing leases

• Negotiate and sign leases which provide for regular or fixed 
contractual increases to minimum rents

• Capitalize on management’s long-standing relationships with
national and regional retailers and extensive experience in 
marketing to local retailers, as well as exploit the leverage inherent
in a larger portfolio of Properties in order to lease available space

• Utilize our team-oriented management approach to increase 
productivity and efficiency

• Acquire strategically located malls

• Hold Properties for long-term investment and emphasize regular
maintenance, periodic renovation and capital improvements to
preserve and maximize value 

• Selectively dispose of assets we believe have achieved long-term
investment potential and re-deploy the proceeds

• Control operating costs by utilizing our employees to perform 
management, leasing, marketing, finance, accounting, construction
supervision, legal and information technology services

• Renovate, reconfigure or expand Properties and utilize existing
land available for expansion and development of outparcels to
meet the needs of existing or new tenants

• Utilize our development capabilities to develop quality properties
at low costs.

Our strategy is to be a leading REIT focusing on enclosed Malls
located primarily in the top 100 metropolitan statistical areas by
population. We intend to continue investing in our existing Mall
Properties and disposing of certain Community Centers as the
marketplace creates favorable opportunities to do so. We expect to

continue investing in select development opportunities and in
strategic acquisitions of mall properties that provide growth
potential. Our goal is to have our Mall Properties eventually 
comprise over 90% of our annualized minimum rents. As of
December 31, 2003, the Mall Properties comprise 89% of our
annualized minimum rents. We expect to finance acquisition
transactions with cash on hand, borrowings under credit facilities,
proceeds from asset dispositions, proceeds from secured mortgage
financing, proceeds from the issuance of equity or debt securities,
or a combination of one or more of the foregoing.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

General 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations is based upon our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP.
The preparation of these financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. Management bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Senior management has discussed the development,
selection and disclosure of these estimates with the Audit
Committee of the Board of Trustees. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

An accounting policy is deemed to be critical if it requires an
accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about matters
that are highly uncertain at the time the estimate is made and if
different estimates that are reasonably likely to occur could materially
impact the financial statements. Management believes the critical
accounting policies discussed in this section reflect its more 
significant estimates and assumptions used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue recognition policy relating to minimum
rents does not require use of estimates. Percentage rents, tenant
reimbursements and the component of other revenue associated
with outparcel sales include estimates. The tenant reimbursement
estimates are discussed in the accounts receivable section below.

Percentage rents
The recognition of percentage rents income requires management to
make certain estimates with regard to tenants’ sales levels. The 
majority of the Company’s tenants report sales on a monthly basis,
which provides the Company with a reasonable basis upon which 
to record this income. The monthly sales amounts, however, are
unaudited and subject to change when the tenant reports its final sales
after the end of the lease year. In addition, leases sometimes permit
the exclusion of certain types of sales or services from the calculation
of percentage rent due.
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Outparcel sales
The Company sells outparcels at its various Properties. The 
estimated cost used to calculate the margin from these sales
involves a number of estimates. The estimates made are based
either upon assigning a proportionate cost, based upon historical
cost paid for the total parcel, to the portion of the parcel that is
sold or by incorporating the sales value method. The proportionate
share of actual cost is derived through consideration of numerous
factors. These factors include items such as ease of access to the
parcel, visibility from high traffic areas and other factors that may
differentiate the desirability of the particular section of the parcel
that is sold.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Estimates are used to establish cost reimbursements from tenants 
for common area maintenance, real estate tax and insurance tenant
accounts receivable, and for accounts receivable reserves. Leases 
are not uniform in dealing with such cost reimbursements and 
variations in computations between Properties and tenants exists.
Adjustments are also made throughout the year to these receivables
and the related cost recovery income based upon the Company’s best
estimate of the final amounts to be billed and collected. The
Company analyzes the balance of its estimated accounts receivable
for real estate taxes, common area maintenance and insurance for
each of its Properties by comparing actual recoveries versus actual
expenses and any actual write-offs. Based on its analysis, the
Company may record an additional amount in its allowance for
doubtful accounts related to these items. The allowance for doubtful
accounts reflects the Company’s estimate of the amounts of the
recorded accounts receivable at the balance sheet date that will not be
realized from cash receipts in subsequent periods. The Company
reviews specific tenant balances; if the financial condition of the
Company’s tenants deteriorates as a result of operating difficulties 
or tenants operating under bankruptcy protection, additional 
provisions may be required.

Investment in Real Estate

The Company maintains a diverse portfolio of real estate assets.
The portfolio holdings have increased as a result of both 
acquisitions and the development of new Properties and have been
reduced by selected sales of assets. The amounts to be capitalized
as a result of acquisition and developments and the periods over
which the assets are depreciated or amortized are determined
based on the application of accounting standards that may require
estimates as to fair value and the allocation of various costs to 
the individual assets. The Company allocates the cost of the 
acquisition based upon the estimated fair value of the net assets
acquired. The Company also estimates the fair value of intangibles
related to its recent acquisitions. The valuation of the fair value of
the intangibles involves estimates related to market conditions,
probability of lease renewals and the current market value of
in-place leases. This market value is determined by considering
factors such as the tenant’s industry, location within the Property
and competition in the specific geography in which the Property
operates. Differences in the amount attributed to the intangible
assets can be significant based upon the assumptions made in 
calculating these estimates. The Company evaluates the 
recoverability of its investments in real estate assets to be held and

used and records an impairment charge when there is an indicator
of impairment and the undiscounted projected cash flows are less
than the carrying amount for a particular Property. The estimated
cash flows used for the impairment analysis and to determine 
estimated fair value are based on the Company’s plans for the
respective assets and the Company’s views of market and 
economic conditions. The estimates consider matters such as 
current and historical rental rates, occupancies for the respective
Properties and comparable properties and recent sales data for
comparable properties. Changes in estimated future cash flows 
due to changes in the Company’s plans or views of market and
economic conditions could result in recognition of impairment
losses which, under the applicable accounting guidance, could be
substantial.

The sale of real estate assets may also involve the application of
judgments in determining whether the risks and rewards of
ownership have transferred to the buyer and that a sale has been
completed for purposes of recognizing a gain on the sale.
Although the Company has, from time to time, entered into 
negotiations or contracts that cover the sale of individual assets,
the asset sales have not been part of a plan to dispose of specific
holdings. The determination of whether specific assets are 
classified as held for sale or maintained as operating assets which
continue to be depreciated, reflects management’s judgment and
future intent with respect to the Properties.

Depreciation expense for real estate assets is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets:
forty years for buildings and improvements and five to ten years for
equipment and fixtures. Expenditures for leasehold improvements
and construction allowances paid to tenants are capitalized and
amortized over the term of each lease.

Derivatives

The Company has used interest rate cap agreements to hedge
interest rate exposure and interest rate swap contracts to convert a
portion of its variable rate debt to fixed rate debt. The Company
has a policy of only entering into contracts with major financial
institutions based upon their credit ratings and other factors, and
all contracts are intended to be effective as hedges of specific 
interest rate risk exposures. In connection with the determination
of the effectiveness of these hedges and the recognition of any
unrealized gain or loss on these contracts, the Company computes
the fair value of the contracts at each balance sheet date. To 
determine the fair values of derivative instruments, the Company
uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on 
market conditions and risks existing at each balance sheet date.
Standard market conventions and techniques such as discounted
cash flow analysis, replacement cost, and termination cost are used
to determine fair value. All methods of assessing fair value result 
in a general approximation of value, and such value may never
actually be realized. The Company at times employs an external,
third party to perform an independent assessment of the fair 
value of the derivatives portfolio. The aggregate fair value of the
Company’s derivative instruments was $(1.0) million and $(7.0)
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS 

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with GAAP. The Company has also 
indicated that FFO is a key measure of financial performance.
FFO is an important and widely used financial measure of
operating performance in its industry, which the Company
believes provides important information to investors and a 
relevant basis for comparison among REITs.

Management believes that FFO is an appropriate and valuable 
measure of the Company’s operating performance because real 
estate generally appreciates over time or maintains a residual value 
to a much greater extent than personal property and, accordingly,
reductions for real estate depreciation and amortization charges are
not meaningful in evaluating the operating results of the Properties.

FFO, as defined by NAREIT is used by the real estate industry 
and investment community as a supplemental measure of the 
performance of real estate companies. FFO does not represent cash
generated from operating activities in accordance with GAAP and is
not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash needs. FFO
should not be considered as an alternative to net income as the 
primary indicator of the Company’s operating performance or as
an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity. The Company’s
FFO may not be directly comparable to similarly titled measures
reported by other real estate investment trusts.

The following table illustrates the calculation of FFO and the 
reconciliation of FFO to net income available to common 
shareholders for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002 
and 2001 (in thousands):

(for the years ended December 31,)

2003 2002 2001

Net income available 
to common shareholders $ 10,134 $ 24,421 $ 31,363

Add back (less):
Real estate depreciation 
and amortization 64,688 59,547 57,156

Share of joint venture real estate 
depreciation and amortization 3,936 7,182 9,494

Minority interest in operating 
partnership 842 2,334 3,519

Discontinued operations: Loss 
(gain) on sales of properties 3,913 (15,756)

(Gain) loss on sales of properties (2,156) 610

Cumulative effect of
accounting change 116

Funds from operations $ 81,357 $ 77,728 $ 102,258

FFO increased by 4.7% or $3.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 from December 31, 2002. This increase can 
be attributed to an increase in net income from continuing 
operations. The year ended December 31, 2003 includes Colonial

Park Mall, G & G Blaine and Eastland North Carolina as 
consolidated Properties beginning March 6, 2003, April 24, 2003
and August 14, 2003, respectively. During 2002 these three
Properties were unconsolidated joint ventures. Also during 2003
the Company acquired WestShore Plaza and Eastland Ohio on
August 27, 2003 and December 22, 2003, respectively. On August
25, 2003 the Company completed a $60 million Series F 
cumulative preferred offering. The proceeds from this offering
were used to fund the WestShore Plaza acquisition and pay 
down the existing line of credit. As a result, preferred share 
dividends increased by $1.9 million. The net impact of the above
transactions was to increase net income and to increase FFO.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Revenues

Total revenues increased 18.3%, or $48.9 million, for the year
ended December 31, 2003. Of the $48.9 million increase, $48.8
million was the result of increased revenues at the Malls (including
a $41.0 million increase resulting from the acquisition of six Malls
previously reflected as owned by joint ventures in which the
Company was a joint venturer and $7.4 million increase from the
WestShore Plaza Mall and Eastland Ohio acquisitions). Revenues
from acquisitions for the year ended December 31, 2003 reflect the
inclusion in the consolidated financial statements of SuperMall of
the Great Northwest effective July 18, 2002, Dayton Mall effective
August 5, 2002, Almeda Mall and Northwest Mall effective
November 18, 2002, Colonial Park Mall effective March 6, 2003,
G & G Blaine, LLC effective April 24, 2003 and Eastland North
Carolina effective August 14, 2003, and as a result of the
Company’s acquisitions of WestShore Plaza Mall effective 
August 27, 2003 and Eastland Ohio effective December 22, 2003.

Minimum rents
Minimum rents increased 23.0% or $35.6 million, for the year
ended December 31, 2003, of which $31.0 million is the result of
acquisitions. The increase in same center minimum rents resulted
primarily from increases in termination income.

Increase (Decrease) (dollars in millions)

COMMUNITY PERCENT
MALLS CENTERS TOTAL TOTAL

Same center $ 4.1 $ 0.5 $ 4.6 3.0%

Acquisitions 31.0 0.0 31.0 20.0

$ 35.1 $ 0.5 $ 35.6 23.0%

Tenant reimbursements
Tenant reimbursements reflect an increase of 14.8%, or $11.8 
million, for the year ended December 31, 2003. Acquisitions
accounted for a $13.9 million increase that was partially offset by
reduced recovery rates for common area maintenance (“CAM”),
taxes and insurance in 2003.
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Increase (Decrease) (dollars in millions)

COMMUNITY PERCENT
MALLS CENTERS TOTAL TOTAL

Same center $ (2.4) $ 0.3 $ (2.1) (2.6)%

Acquisitions 13.9 0.0 13.9 17.4

$ 11.5 $ 0.3 $ 11.8 14.8%

Other revenues
The $400,000 increase in other revenues is a result of a $3.4 million
increase in temporary tenant income and a $1.9 million increase in 
miscellaneous income partially offset by a $3.2 million reduction in 
management fee income resulting from the Company’s acquisition
of third party joint venture interests and a $1.8 million decrease in
outparcel sales.

Expenses

Total expenses increased 24.6%, or $41.5 million, for the year
ended December 31, 2003. Real estate taxes and property operating
expenses increased $19.5 million, depreciation and amortization
increased $10.8 million and provision for doubtful accounts
increased by $10.9 million. These increases were partially offset by
a decrease in general and administrative expenses of $287,000.

Real estate taxes and property operating expenses
Real estate taxes and property operating expenses increased 22.2%,
or $19.5 million, for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Increase (Decrease) (dollars in millions)

COMMUNITY PERCENT
MALLS CENTERS TOTAL TOTAL

Same center $ 1.9 $ 0.6 $ 2.5 2.9%

Acquisitions 17.0 0.0 17.0 19.3

$ 18.9 $ 0.6 $ 19.5 22.2%

Provision for doubtful accounts 
The provision for doubtful accounts was $17.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 and $6.4 million for the corresponding
period in 2002.

In 2003, the Company increased its provision for doubtful accounts
by $10.9 million. The increase includes a provision attributable to
prior year estimated tenant recoveries for CAM, real estate taxes and
insurance at the Company’s Properties of $10.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003, an increase of $7.5 million. The Company’s
policy is to record the estimated recovery as an accounts receivable
monthly throughout the year and true-up the recorded receivable
upon completion of the true-up calculation. In addition, the
Company established reserves in the second quarter for past due
receivables owed by bankrupt companies and other troubled 
tenants for an additional $3.3 million.

Depreciation and Amortization
The $10.8 million increase in depreciation and amortization consists
primarily of $8.3 million from the consolidation of six Malls which
were previously reflected as joint ventures and a $1.8 million increase
from the WestShore Plaza Mall and Eastland Ohio acquisitions.

General and Administrative
General and administrative expense was $10.0 million and 
represented 3.2% of total revenues for the year ended December
31, 2003 compared to $10.3 million and 3.8% of total revenues for
the corresponding period in 2002. The decrease is primarily due 
to a reduction in corporate salaries and wages as a result of
reductions in the number of Company personnel.

Interest expense/capitalized interest 

Interest expense decreased 5.6%, or $4.8 million, for the year
ended December 31, 2003. The summary below identifies the
decrease by its various components (dollars in thousands).

(year ended December 31,)

2003 2002 INC. (DEC.)

Average loan balance $ 1,173,183 $ 1,150,933 $ 22,250

Average rate 6.56% 6.80% (0.24)%

Total interest $ 76,961 $ 78,263 $ (1,302)

Amorization of loan fees 4,805 7,614 (2,809)

Capitalized interest and other (1) (411) 284 (695)

Interest expense $ 81,355 $ 86,161 $ (4,806)

(1) Other consists primarily of interest costs billed to joint venture entities.

Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated entities

The $936,000 decrease of equity income in unconsolidated 
entities results primarily from the acquisition of joint venture 
interests from our joint venture partners. These Properties were
acquired between the third quarter of 2002 and the third quarter of
2003. These acquisitions resulted in a decrease of equity income of
unconsolidated entities of $644,000. Also, income decreased by
$826,000 due to increased interest expense associated with a change
in long-term debt obligations. These decreases were partially offset
by increased revenue and decreased operating expenses resulting in
increased operating income of $609,000.

Discontinued Operations

During 2003, the Company sold five Community Centers for $18.6
million and reflected two other Community Centers, Cambridge
Plaza and Morgantown Plaza located in Cambridge, Ohio and
Morgantown, West Virginia, respectively, as held for sale. These
Properties, in accordance with SFAS No. 144, are reported in 
discontinued operations. The Company recorded a net loss on the
sale of discontinued operations of $3,913,000 of which $3,654,000
is associated with current year dispositions and $259,000, which
relates to Properties that were disposed of prior to 2003. Total 
revenues (in thousands) for these assets were $1,426, $3,541, and
$3,920 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. For segment reporting purposes, revenues and
expenses, including interest expense, would have been reported as
part of Community Centers.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Revenues

Total revenues increased 7.9%, or $19.7 million, for the year ended
December 31, 2002. Of the $19.7 million increase, $22.9 million was
the result of increased revenues at the Malls (including a $25.2 
million increase from acquisitions). The offsetting $3.2 million
decrease was primarily related to a $1.8 million decrease in revenues
at the Community Centers. Acquisitions for the year ended
December 31, 2002, reflect the inclusion in the consolidated 
financial statements of Jersey Gardens effective April 6, 2001,
SuperMall of the Great Northwest effective July 18, 2002, Dayton
Mall effective August 5, 2002 and Almeda Mall and Northwest Mall
effective November 18, 2002, as a result of the Company’s acquisition
of the third party interests in the entities owning these Properties.

Minimum rents
Minimum rents increased 6.7%, or $9.8 million, for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Increase (Decrease) (dollars in millions)

COMMUNITY PERCENT
MALLS CENTERS TOTAL TOTAL

Same center $ (1.9) $ (3.2) $ (5.1) (3.5)%

Acquisitions 14.9 0.0 14.9 10.2

$ 13.0 $ (3.2) $ 9.8 6.7%

The primary components of the same center Mall decline of $1.9
million are additional rents from in-line stores of $1.9 million, a
decline in termination income of $2.0 million and a reduction of
$1.6 million as a result of anchor tenant bankruptcies. The
Community Centers same center decrease of $3.2 million is 
primarily related to a $2.2 million reduction as a result of anchor
tenant bankruptcies.

Tenant reimbursements
Tenant reimbursements reflect a net increase of 12.5%, or $8.9 
million, for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Increase (dollars in millions)

COMMUNITY PERCENT
MALLS CENTERS TOTAL TOTAL

Same center $ 0.4 $ 0.6 $ 1.0 1.4%

Acquisitions 7.9 0.0 7.9 11.1

$ 8.3 $ 0.6 $ 8.9 12.5%

Other revenues
The $582,000 increase in other revenues is primarily the result of
a $1.6 million increase due to the formation of Ohio Entertainment
Corporation (“OEC”) effective June 1, 2001, a $400,000 gain on the
disposition of short-term investments relating to the defeasance of
debt securities on February 4, 2002; $1.4 million as a result of
increased temporary tenant income from the Malls; and $500,000 in
other revenue increases, partially offset by a $3.3 million decrease in
fee income. Fee income was lower due to the completion of Polaris

Fashion Place in 2001, and the subsequent loss of development fee
income from said joint venture in 2002. It reflects a reduction in
joint venture management fees as a result of the Company’s 
acquisition of third party joint venture interests. OEC operates a
theater at one mall and a skating rink at another mall; the revenues
and expenses of these operations are included in other revenues and
other operating expenses.

Expenses

Total expenses increased 7.4%, or $11.6 million, for the year ended
December 31, 2002 primarily as a result of Mall acquisitions. Real
estate taxes and property operating expenses increased $11.3 
million, the provision for doubtful accounts and other operating
expenses decreased $258,000, depreciation and amortization
increased $4.3 million, general and administrative expenses
decreased $890,000 and development write-off ’s decreased $2.8 
million, respectively.

Real estate taxes and property operating expenses
Real estate taxes and property operating expenses increased 14.7%, or
$11.3 million, for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Increase (dollars in millions)

COMMUNITY PERCENT
MALLS CENTERS TOTAL TOTAL

Same center $ 1.2 $ 0.4 $ 1.6 2.1%

Acquisitions 9.7 0.0 9.7 12.6

$ 10.9 $ 0.4 $ 11.3 14.7%

The same center increase of $1.6 million consists primarily of
increased insurance expense of approximately $1.8 million, as a 
result of increased premiums charged by the insurance carriers.

Provision for doubtful accounts 
The provision for doubtful accounts was $6.4 million for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Although the
amount of this expense is comparable, the provision for doubtful
accounts as a percent of revenues decreased to 2.4% in 2002 from
2.6% in 2001.

The provision for doubtful accounts reflects the Company’s 
estimate of the amounts of the recorded accounts receivable at the
balance sheet date that will not be recovered from cash receipts in
subsequent periods. During 2001 and 2002, various small shop 
tenants and a number of national tenants which leased anchor 
space at its Properties filed for bankruptcy protection. Anchor 
tenants that were operating or liquidating under bankruptcy 
protection in 2001 included Ames, HomePlace, Lechter’s and 
Phar-Mor. Exposure to tenants currently operating under 
bankruptcy protection and the continuing operating difficulties
being experienced by various retailers resulted in the Company
increasing its provision for doubtful accounts in 2002 and 2001 
over previous years. The Company considers the experience to be a
direct result of, and to be consistent with, the weak U.S. economy
during 2002. The Company is entitled to file claims for damages in
connection with any leases rejected in bankruptcy filings. The
Company does not recognize in accounts receivable or revenue
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amounts attributable to such claims until the claims for rejected
leases are approved by the courts. The Company also does not 
consider such potential claims in estimating the recoverability of
recorded accounts.

Development Cost Write-Off
Write-off of development costs decreased due to a development
write-off of $3.2 million in 2001 related to a development project
in the City of Carson, California which was terminated on 
June 30, 2001.

Depreciation and Amortization
The $4.3 million increase in depreciation and amortization 
consists primarily of a $4.8 million increase from Mall acquisitions
offset with a $470,000 decrease from dispositions.

General and administrative
General and administrative expenses were $10.3 million and 
represented 3.8% of total revenues for the year ended December 31,
2002, compared to $11.2 million and 4.5% of total revenues for the
corresponding period in 2001. The 2002 costs are representative of
the general and administrative costs related to the Company’s 
current staffing levels. The Company also reduced corporate 
headcount by approximately 10.0% and recognized approximately
$863,000 in severance related costs. The Company did not grant
general salary increases or bonuses for 2002 but the Company has
experienced higher costs as a result of increasing premiums for
insurance costs related to health benefits provided by the Company.

Interest expense/capitalized interest

Interest expense increased 0.5%, or $401,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The summary below identifies the increase by
its various components (dollars in thousands).

(year ended December 31,)

2002 2001 INC. (DEC.)

Average loan balance $ 1,150,933 $1,130,999 $ 19,934

Average rate 6.80% 7.37% (0.57)%

Total interest $ 78,263 $ 83,355 $ (5,092)

Amorization of loan fees 7,614 6,707 907

Capitalized interest and other(1) 284 (4,302) 4,586

Interest expense $ 86,161 $ 85,760 $ 401

(1) Other consists primarily of interest costs billed to joint venture entities.

Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated entities

The $1.0 million increase in the equity in income (loss) of
unconsolidated entities consists primarily of an increase from
Polaris Fashion Place having a full year of operating results in 2002
versus 2001 in which the Mall opened on October 25, 2001. This is
partially offset by the elimination of equity income from four joint
venture interests acquired by the Company in the third and fourth
quarters of 2002. The equity in the income of those joint ventures
was included in this item for the full twelve months of 2001.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Liquidity
The Company’s short-term (less than one year) liquidity 
requirements include recurring operating costs, capital 
expenditures, debt service requirements and preferred and 
common dividend requirements. The Company anticipates that
these needs will be met with cash flows provided by operations, the
refinancing of maturing debt and proceeds from the sale of assets.

The Company’s long-term (greater than one year) liquidity 
requirements include scheduled debt maturities, capital 
expenditures to maintain, renovate and expand existing assets,
property acquisitions and development projects. Management
anticipates that net cash provided by operating activities, the 
funds available under the Company’s $150 million three-year
secured bank credit facility maturing on October 16, 2006 
(the “Credit Facility”), construction financing, long-term mortgage
debt, issuance of preferred and common shares of beneficial interest
and proceeds from the sale of assets will provide sufficient capital
resources to carry out the Company’s business strategy relative to
the acquisitions, renovations, expansions and developments.

At December 31, 2003, the Company’s total-debt-to-total-market
capitalization was 55.5% per annum, compared to 57.9% per
annum, at December 31, 2002. The Company is working to 
maintain this ratio in the mid-fifty percent range. The Company
expects to utilize the proceeds from future asset sales to reduce 
debt and, to the extent that market capitalization remains in the
current range, to acquire additional regional mall properties.
The total-debt-to-total-market capitalization is calculated below 
(dollars in thousands).

DEC. 31, 2003 DEC. 31, 2002

Stock Price (end of period) $ 22.38 17.75

Market Capitalization Ratio:
Common Shares outstanding 35,066 34,315
Operating Partnership units outstanding 2,969 3,279

Total Common Shares and units 
outstanding at end of period 38,035 37,594

Market capitalization – Common 

Shares outstanding $ 784,777 $ 609,091

Market capitalization – Operating 
partnership units outstanding 66,446 58,202

Market capitalization – Series B 
Preferred Shares 127,950 127,950

Market capitalization – Series F 
Preferred Shares 60,000

Total debt (end of period) 1,295,058 1,095,930

Total market capitalization $ 2,334,231 $ 1,891,173

Total debt / total market capitalization 55.5% 57.9%
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Financing Activity

The Company, through its subsidiary, Glimcher Properties 
Limited Partnership (the “Operating Partnership” or “GPLP”), at
December 31, 2002, was a party to a credit facility with several
financial institutions that provided the Company with the ability
to borrow up to $170.0 million. The credit facility bore interest at a
rate ranging from LIBOR plus 1.60% per annum to 1.90% per
annum and was designated to an interest rate swap agreement that
fixed LIBOR at 5.39% per annum on $110.0 million until January
31, 2004 (the weighted average interest rate on total outstanding 
borrowings after giving effect to the swap agreement was 6.29% per
annum on the outstanding borrowings at December 31, 2002). This
credit facility was paid off and replaced by the new Credit Facility.

On October 17, 2003, the Company entered into a new Credit
Facility that provides the Company with the ability to borrow up
to $150.0 million. This Credit Facility expires October 16, 2006
and replaced the existing line of credit which was scheduled to
mature on January 31, 2004. The new Credit Facility is 
collateralized with first mortgage liens on three Malls and eleven
Community Centers. The interest rate on the new Credit Facility
ranges from LIBOR plus 1.15% per annum to LIBOR plus 1.70%
per annum, depending on the Company’s ratio of debt to asset
value. During 2003, the weighted average interest rate was 6.45%
per annum after giving effect to the swap agreement. At December
31, 2003, the outstanding balance on the Credit Facility was $80.8
million. Additionally, $4.2 million represents a holdback on the
available balance of the Credit Facility for letters of credit issued
under the Credit Facility. Also, on October 17, 2003, the Company
refinanced The Mall at Fairfield Commons with $114.0 million in
permanent financing maturing November 1, 2014 and bearing
interest at 5.45% per annum.

Total debt increased by $199.1 million during 2003. The change in 
outstanding borrowings is summarized as follows (in thousands):

MORTGAGE NOTES TOTAL
NOTES PAYABLE DEBT

December 31, 2002 $ 956,130 $ 139,800 $ 1,095,930

Acquired mortgage debt:

Colonial Park Mall 34,255 34,255

Eastland North Carolina 46,184 46,184

New mortgage debt 383,000 383,000

Repayment of debt (195,791) (195,791)

Debt amortization payments in 2003 (9,520) (9,520)

Net repayments, line of credit (59,000) (59,000)

December 31, 2003 $ 1,214,258 $ 80,800 $ 1,295,058

During 2003, the Company incurred additional borrowings secured
by first mortgage liens. The new mortgage notes payable totaling
$383.0 million consist of (i) a $5.0 million loan secured by a first
mortgage lien on Artesian Square, which bears interest at LIBOR
plus 1.95% per annum (3.09% at December 31, 2003), (ii) a $140.0
million loan secured by a first mortgage lien on Lloyd Center, which
matures in June 2013 and bears interest at 5.42% per annum, (iii) a
$100.0 million loan secured by a first mortgage lien on WestShore

Plaza, which matures in September 2012 and bears interest at 5.09%
per annum, (iv) a $114.0 million loan secured by a first mortgage
lien on The Mall at Fairfield Commons, which matures in
November 2014 and bears interest at 5.45% per annum and (v) a
$24.0 million loan secured by a first mortgage lien on Eastland
Ohio, which matures in January 2007 and bears interest at LIBOR
plus 2.00% per annum (3.15% at December 31, 2003).

At December 31, 2003, the Company’s Credit Facility was 
collateralized with first mortgage liens on fourteen Properties 
having a net book value of $136.4 million and its mortgage notes
payable were collateralized with first mortgage liens on Properties
having a net book value of $1,493.5 million. The Company also
owned 26 unencumbered Properties having a net book value of
$71.2 million at that date. The Credit Facility, San Mall, LP 
mortgage and Morgantown Mall Associates, LP mortgage are
cross-collateralized as part of a group of Properties under a single
loan, certain of the loans have cross-default provisions and certain
of the loans are subject to guarantees and financial covenants.
Under the cross-default provisions, a default under a single 
mortgage may constitute a default under all of the mortgages in
the group and could lead to acceleration of the indebtedness on 
all Properties under such loan. Properties which are subject to
cross-default provisions have a net book value of $220.1 million
and represent twelve Community Centers and six Malls.

Capital Expenditures

The Company plans its capital expenditures by considering 
various factors such as; return on investment, the Company’s 
five-year capital plan for major facility expenditures such as roof
and parking lots, tenant construction allowances based upon the
economics of the lease terms and cash available for making such
expenditures. The Company categorizes its capital expenditures
into two broad categories, first-generation and second-generation
expenditures. The first-generation expenditures relate to 
incremental revenues associated with new developments or 
creation of new GLA at the Company’s existing Properties.
Second-generation expenditures are those expenditures associated
with maintaining the current income stream and are generally
expenditures made to maintain the Properties and to replace 
tenants for spaces that have been previously occupied. Capital
expenditures are generally accumulated into a project and 
classified as “developments in progress” on the consolidated 
balance sheet until such time as the project is completed. At the
time the project is complete, the dollars are transferred to the
appropriate category on the balance sheet and are depreciated on 
a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset.

Acquisitions and Dispositions

The Company is pursuing a strategy of selling single tenant and
non-strategic Community Center assets and focusing on the Mall
portfolio. The timing and selling prices of future asset sales are
dependent upon the Company being able to consummate sales
transactions under acceptable terms and at satisfactory pricing. Net
proceeds from asset sales are expected to be applied to reduce debt
and to fund additional investments in regional mall properties.
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During 2003, the Company sold five Community Centers for $18.6 
million and reflected two other Community Centers as held for sale
at December 31, 2003. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the sold
Properties are reported in Discontinued Operations. Net income
includes loss on sales of Discontinued Operations of $(0.10) per
common share of beneficial interest (the “Common Shares”) diluted
compared with a gain of $0.44 per Common Share diluted for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

On March 6, 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of the
joint venture interest not previously owned by the Company in
Colonial Park Mall, an enclosed regional mall located in
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, from LB Colonial Park, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company. The Company acquired the remaining
50% interest for $5.5 million in cash. The property had an 
outstanding mortgage balance of $34.3 million on the acquisition
date. The existing mortgage, which originated in 1997, matures on
October 11, 2007. The debt bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.73%
per annum.

On April 24, 2003 the Company completed the acquisition from
Greyhawke Net Lease Investors III, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company, of the 50% interest not previously owned by the Company
in G & G Blaine, LLC, and a related parcel of land for approximately
$2.96 million in cash. With the completion of this transaction, GPLP is
the sole owner of a vacant anchor building and underlying land at
Northtown Mall in Minneapolis, Minnesota. Northtown Mall is 
wholly owned by the Company.

On August 14, 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of
the joint venture interest not previously owned by the Company 
in Eastland North Carolina, an enclosed regional mall located in
Charlotte, North Carolina, from HIG Mall, LLC, a Florida limited
liability company. The Company acquired the remaining 80%
interest for $4.75 million in cash. The property had an outstanding
mortgage balance of $46.2 million on the acquisition date.
The existing mortgage, which originated in 1998, matures on
September 11, 2008. The debt bears interest at a fixed rate of
7.84% per annum and requires payments of principal and interest
based on a 30-year principal amortization schedule.

On August 27, 2003, the Company acquired WestShore Plaza Mall,
a fully enclosed regional shopping mall located in Tampa, Florida,
from American Freeholds, a Nevada general partnership, which is
sponsored by Grosvenor USA. Approximately $100 million of the
$152 million purchase price was funded with a new nine-year 
mortgage loan, which bears interest at the fixed rate of 5.09% per
annum and requires payments of principal and interest based on a
30-year principal amortization schedule. The additional $52 million
was funded using a portion of the net proceeds of the 8.75% Series
F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Share offering that was 
completed by the Company on August 25, 2003.

On December 22, 2003, the Company acquired Eastland Ohio, a
940,000 square foot enclosed regional mall in Columbus, Ohio,
from Columbus East Joint Venture, an Ohio general partnership.
The purchase price of $29.65 million was paid with the proceeds
from a $24 million three-year mortgage bank loan that bears 
interest at a per annum rate of LIBOR plus 200 basis points (3.15%

at December 31, 2003) and approximately $5 million of borrowings
on the Company’s credit facility. The Company may, subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions, also borrow up to an additional
$12 million under the bank loan to fund costs relating to the 
addition of a new anchor and other improvements to the mall.

Preferred Stock Activity

On August 25, 2003, the Company completed a $60 million public 
offering of 2,400,000 shares of 8.75% Series F cumulative preferred
shares of beneficial interest, par value of $0.01 per share, (the
“Series F Preferred Shares”), at a purchase price of $25.00 per
Series F Preferred Share. Aggregate net proceeds of the offering
were $58 million. Distributions on the Series F Preferred Shares
are payable quarterly in arrears. The Company generally may
redeem the Series F Preferred Shares anytime on or after August
25, 2008, at a redemption price of $25.00 per share, plus accrued
and unpaid distributions. The Company used approximately $52
million of the net proceeds to pay a portion of the purchase price
of the acquisition of WestShore Plaza, a regional mall totaling
approximately 1.1 million square feet of GLA located in Tampa,
Florida. The Company used the $4.8 million balance of the net
proceeds to repay a portion of the balance outstanding on the
Company’s $170.0 million secured credit facility.

On February 23, 2004, the Company completed its offering to 
the public of 6,000,000 shares of 8.125% Series G cumulative
redeemable preferred shares of beneficial interest (the “Series G
Preferred Shares”) at a purchase price of $25.00 per Series G
Preferred Share. Aggregate net proceeds of the offering were
$145.3 million. Distributions on the Series G Preferred Shares 
are payable quarterly in arrears beginning on April 15, 2004.
The Company generally may redeem the Series G Preferred Shares
anytime on or after February 23, 2009, at a redemption price of
$25.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid distributions.
Approximately $128.4 million of the proceeds were used to
redeem the Series B Preferred shares on February 27, 2004 and to
pay down $16.9 million of the Company’s Credit Facility, which
was recently drawn upon to pay off $17.0 million in subordinated
mortgage debt relating to the Company’s Great Mall of the Great
Plains in Olathe, Kansas.

Cash Activity

Net cash provided by operating activities was $100.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003, an increase of $33.0 million from
December 31, 2002. Net income adjusted for non-cash items
accounted for a $17.7 million increase. Changes in operating assets
and liabilities accounted for a $15.3 million increase. The increase
can be attributed to the acquisition of five developments that were
not previously wholly owned by the Company.

Net cash used by investing activities was $200.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003. The primary investments were the
investments in real estate of $218.9 million for the acquisitions of
WestShore Plaza and Eastland Ohio. Also reflected are the purchases
of joint venture interests not previously owned in Colonial Park
Mall, Eastland North Carolina and G & G Blaine. Additionally, the
Company received $18.1 million from the sale of five Community
Centers and $8.4 million from the sale of assets.
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Net cash provided from financing activities was $99.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003. Proceeds received from the
issuance of new mortgages were $383 million. These mortgages
primarily relate to acquisitions of WestShore Plaza and Eastland
Ohio as well as the proceeds received from the issuance of a 
mortgage on The Mall at Fairfield Commons and Lloyd Center.
Principal payments on mortgages totaled $205.3 million. These
payments reflect satisfaction of mortgages at Lloyd Center, which
was later refinanced, Northtown Mall and various bridge loans.
Also the company received $57.6 million through the issuance of
Series F Preferred Shares. The Company also used $85.1 million
for the payment of common, preferred and operating partnership
dividends.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL
COMMITMENTS

Contractual Obligations

Long-term debt obligations are included in the consolidated 
balance sheet and the nature of the obligations are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

On January 5, 2004, the Company acquired the remaining joint
venture interests in Polaris Fashion Place and Polaris Towne
Center. The amount of off-balance sheet debt at December 31,
2003 that was assumed on January 5, 2004 is shown on the table
below. The revenues and net operating income were $32.1 million
and $22.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The debt
will be reported on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet
beginning in January 2004.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had the following obligations 
relating to dividend distributions. In the fourth quarter of 2003,
dividends were declared for $0.4808 per share of Common Shares
and Operating Partnership units to be paid in the first quarter of
2004. The Series B Preferred Shares dividends of $3.0 million were
accrued and paid at such time those shares were redeemed by the
Company on February 27, 2004, with no further obligation 

relating to those shares. The Series F Preferred Shares are not
required to be redeemed and therefore, the dividends on those
shares may be paid in perpetuity. However, as the Series F
Preferred Shares are redeemable at the Company’s option on or
after August 25, 2008, the obligation for the dividends for the 
Series F Preferred Shares are included in the contractual obligations
through that date. The total dividend obligation included in the
table for the Series F Preferred Shares is $24.9 million.

Capital lease obligations are for equipment at the various Properties
and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the
consolidated balance sheet. Operating lease obligations are for office
space, ground leases, phone system, office equipment and computer
equipment.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had executed leases 
committing to $3.2 million in tenant allowances. The leases will
generate gross rents which approximate $19.8 million over the
original lease term.

Commercial Commitments

The line of credit terms are discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated 
financial statements.

The standby letters of credits are for utility deposits ($150,000) and
for a mortgage for The Mall at Fairfield Commons (“MFC”), ($4.0
million). The letter of credit associated with the MFC mortgage 
will be released upon completion of certain requirements for a 
tenant at the property. Management expects the tenant to meet the 
requirements and does not anticipate any payment to be required
on this letter of credit.

The guarantee included in the commercial commitments relates to
Polaris Fashion Place and is discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements. The guarantee relates to certain tenant
allowances and the Company does not expect to incur any liability.

The following table shows the Company’s contractual and commercial 
obligations as of December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
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TOTAL 2004 2005-2006 2007-2008 THEREAFTER

Contractual Obligations

Long-term Debt $ 1,214,258 $ 263,113 $ 125,709 $ 198,708 $ 626,728

Long-term Debt – Joint Ventures 190,465 2,470 5,411 6,068 176,516

Dividend Obligations 46,184 26,496 10,500 9,188

Capital Lease Obligations 2,490 958 1,128 294 110

Operating Leases 3,392 824 1,339 518 711

Tenant Allowances 3,215 3,215

Total Contractual Obligations $ 1,460,004 $ 297,076 $ 144,087 $ 214,776 $ 804,065

Commercial Obligations

Lines of Credit $ 80,800 $ 80,800

Standby Letter of Credit 4,150 $ 4,150

Guarantees 2,941 2,941

Total Commercial Obligations $ 87,891 $ 7,091 $ 80,800
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EXPANSION, RENOVATION AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY

The Company continues to be active in its expansion, renovation
and development activities. Its business strategy is to grow the
Company’s assets, net income and cash flow to, among other
things, provide for dividend requirements and to preserve,
maintain and expand value for shareholders.

Expansions and Renovations

The Company maintains a strategy of selective expansions and 
renovations in order to improve the operating performance and
the competitive position of its existing portfolio. The Company
also engages in an active redevelopment program with the 
objective of attracting innovative retailers which management
believes will enhance the operating performance of the Properties.

Malls
Mall store occupancy decreased slightly to 89.6% at December 31,
2003 from 90.1% at December 31, 2002 due to lower store occupancy
at the newly acquired Malls, WestShore Plaza Mall and Eastland Ohio.
Comparable store occupancy increased to 90.2% from 90.1% at
December 31, 2003. Anchor occupancy in the Malls remained
unchanged at December 31, 2003 and held at 94.5% during 2003.
Comparable mall anchor occupancy dropped from 94.5% to 93.9%,
excluding the 100% anchor occupancy at WestShore Plaza Mall and
Eastland Ohio. The drop in anchors is related to three new vacancies
totaling approximately 297,000 in GLA: Oshman’s SuperSports USA
at The Great Mall, Montgomery Ward at Northtown (a previously
vacated anchor the Company acquired control of in the second
quarter 2003) and Kmart at Southside Mall. This reduction in leased
anchor GLA was partially offset by four new anchors totaling
approximately 222,000 of GLA. The new anchors are three Steve and
Barry’s stores at Grand Central Mall, Northtown Mall, River Valley
Mall and Phil’s Shoes at Northwest Mall.

In October 2003, a plan was finalized to add approximately 84,000
of GLA to the MFC. The expansion plans to include a new sporting
goods retailer, Galyan’s. The new anchor is targeted to open in the
spring of 2005. In December 2003, the Company acquired Eastland
Ohio. The Mall will be redeveloped in 2004 and 2005 by adding
approximately 30,000 of retail GLA and a new Kaufmann’s anchor
approximating 120,000 of GLA. The retail GLA will open in 2005,
with Kaufmann’s targeted to open in the fall of 2005.

Redevelopment of space at the Lloyd Center, a regional Mall in
Portland, Oregon, began in 2003. This project, which encompasses
ground owned by the Company adjacent to the Mall, will include
the addition of new retailing concepts for the center, including the
addition of restaurants and additional banking services, most of
which are expected to open in 2004.

Community Centers
During 2003, the Company opened two new anchors aggregating
137,000 square feet. The new Community Center anchors were
Hobby Lobby at Clarksville Plaza in Clarksville, Indiana and Rooms
of Furniture at Middletown Plaza in Middletown, Ohio. This was
offset by 137,000 square feet of new vacancies due to Wal-Mart 
closings during 2003 in Cumberland Crossing in Jackson, Tennessee

and Newberry Square in Newberry, South Carolina. Community
Center anchor occupancy improved to 77.3% on December 31, 2003
compared to 72.3% at December 31, 2002 due to the sale of three
centers with vacant anchors and the sale of a vacant anchor store to
Home Depot resulting in reduced Community Center vacant anchor
GLA of 344,000 square feet. The Company continues to work with
various prospects to lease the remaining vacant space.

Developments

One of the Company’s objectives is to increase its portfolio by
developing new retail properties. The Company’s management
team has developed over 100 retail properties nationwide and has
significant experience in all phases of the development process
including: site selection, zoning, design, predevelopment leasing,
construction financing and construction management.

The Company has land under option contracts and is incurring 
predevelopment costs in connection with the development of a 
department store anchored retail project in the Cincinnati, Ohio
market. At December 31, 2003, the Company has incurred 
approximately $1.5 million of costs in connection with this project.

PORTFOLIO DATA 

The table below reflects sales per square foot (“Sales PSF”) for
those tenants reporting sales for the twelve month period ended
December 31, 2003. The percentage change is based on those 
tenants reporting sales for the twenty-four month period ended
December 31, 2003.

MALL PROPERTIES COMMUNITY CENTERS

Average Same Store Average Same Store
Property Type Sales PSF % Change Sales PSF % Change

Anchors $ 160 0.5 % $ 253 1.2%

Stores (1) $ 305 (1.1)% $ 250 3.0%

Total $ 225 (0.7)% $ 253 1.4%

(1) Mall stores sales per square foot exclude outparcel sales.
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Portfolio occupancy statistics by property type are summarized
below:

OCCUPANCY (1) (2)

12/31/03 9/30/03 6/30/03 3/30/03 12/31/02

Mall Anchors 94.5% 94.0% 92.8% 94.7% 94.5%

Mall Stores 89.6% 90.2% 89.9% 89.4% 90.1%

Total Mall Portfolio 92.7% 92.6% 91.7% 92.7% 92.9%

Community Center 
Anchors 77.3% 76.0% 74.4% 71.3% 72.3%

Community Center 
Stores 75.7% 78.6% 80.6% 81.8% 82.8%

Single Tenant Retail 
Properties 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Total Community 
Center Portfolio 77.5% 77.2% 76.6% 74.6% 75.5%

Comparable Community 
Center Portfolio 77.5% 76.4%

(1) Occupancy statistics included in the above table are based on the total Company
portfolio which includes Properties owned by the Company and Properties held in
joint ventures.

(2) Occupied space is defined as any space where a tenant is occupying the space
and/or paying rent at the date indicated, excluding all tenants with leases having an
initial term of less than one year.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45”)
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others (an interpretation of SFAS No. 57 and No. 107 and rescission
of FIN 34)”. FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. 5 relating
to a guarantor’s accounting for, and disclosure of, the issuance of
certain types of guarantees, and requires that upon the issuance of a
guarantee, the guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value
of the obligation it assumes under that guarantee. The 
disclosure requirements of FIN 45 are effective for financial 
statements of periods ending after December 15, 2002. The 
recognition provisions of FIN 45 are effective on a prospective 
basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
There was no material impact on the Company’s financial position
as a result of this new pronouncement at December 31, 2003.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”, and as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure”,
prospectively to all awards granted, modified or settled on or 
after January 1, 2003.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 145
“Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections”, a standard
that addresses the classification of gains or losses from early 
extinguishment of debt. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 145,

the Company reported losses from the early extinguishment of
debt as extraordinary items. During the year ended December 31,
2002, the Company recorded $2,260 thousand in extraordinary
items from operations and $9,067 thousand in extraordinary items
from discontinued operations that resulted from the early 
extinguishment of debt. In 2003, these charges were reclassified 
to interest expense and income from discontinued operations,
respectively, to comply with SFAS No. 145. These reclassifications
had no impact on reported net income.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interests Entities – an Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” The
effective date of the interpretation has been postponed by FASB
Staff Position No. FIN 46-6 and will be effective the first interim
or annual reporting period ending after March 15, 2004. The 
interpretation focuses on identifying entities for which a controlling
financial interest is achieved through means other than voting
rights. The potential impact of FIN 46 has been evaluated regarding
potential impact to the Company’s joint venture interests. Based
upon the analysis, the Company does not anticipate that FIN 46 
will have an impact on the Company’s financial position or results
of operations.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of
Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.
SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative 
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. In
particular, SFAS No. 149 clarifies under what circumstances a 
contract with an initial net investment meets the characteristics of a
derivative and when a derivative contains a financing component
that warrants special reporting in the statement of cash flows. SFAS
No. 149 is generally effective for contracts entered into or modified
after June 30, 2003. The Company has no immediate impact as a
result of this pronouncement.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for
Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both
Liabilities and Equity”. SFAS No. 150 establishes standards for 
how an issuer classifies and measures in its statement of financial
position certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial
instrument that is within the scope as a liability (or an asset in
some circumstances) because that financial instrument embodies
an obligation of the issuer. SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial
instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and 
otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003. There was no material impact on
the Company’s financial position as a result of this new 
pronouncement at December 31, 2003.

RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER FACTORS THAT MAY
AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Set forth below and elsewhere in this report and in other 
documents the Company files with the Securities and Exchange
Commission are risks and uncertainties that could cause its actual
results to differ materially from the results contemplated by the
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forward-looking statements contained in this report and other
public statements made. Because of the following factors, as well 
as other variables affecting the Company’s operating results, past
financial performance may not be a reliable indicator of future
performance, and historical trends should not be used to 
anticipate results or trends in future periods.

Risks inherent in owning real estate investments
Real property investments are subject to varying degrees of risk.
If the Company’s Properties do not generate sufficient income to
meet operating expenses and other required expenditures, the
Company’s ability to make dividend distributions will be adversely
affected. The Company’s income may be adversely affected by the
general economic climate, local economic conditions and other
local conditions. Examples of other local conditions that could
adversely affect income include oversupply of space or reduced
demand for rental space and newly developed properties, the
attractiveness of the Company’s Properties compared to other
space, ability to provide adequate maintenance, and fluctuation in
real estate taxes, insurance and other operating costs. The
Company is covered under its all risk property insurance policies
in the amount of $200 million per incident for acts of terrorism
on its consolidated real estate assets through January 1, 2005.
There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain
terrorism insurance on its Properties after that date or, if it can,
that the premiums for the insurance will be reasonable. Income
and real estate values may also be adversely affected by applicable
laws, including tax laws, interest rate levels and the availability of
financing. In addition, real estate investments are relatively illiquid
and, therefore, the Company’s ability to sell its Properties quickly
in response to changes in economic or other conditions will be
limited. In certain areas of the country there may be an oversupply
of retail space. The Company cannot be sure that it will be able to
lease space as tenants move out or as to the rents it may be able to
charge the new tenants at such space.

Reliance on major tenants
At December 31, 2003, the three largest tenants were the Limited
Brands, Inc., Gap, Inc., and Saks, Inc., representing 3.9%, 3.0% 
and 2.4% of annualized minimum rents, respectively. No other
tenant represented more than 2.0% of the aggregate annualized
minimum rents of the Properties as of such date. The Company’s
financial position and ability to make distributions may be
adversely affected by the bankruptcy, insolvency or general 
downturn in the business of any such tenant, or in the event any
such tenant does not renew its lease as it expires.

Bankruptcy of tenants or downturns in tenants’ businesses may reduce
cash flow
Since the Company derives almost all of its income from rental 
payments, its cash available for distribution would be adversely
affected if a significant number of tenants were unable to meet
their obligations, or if the Company was unable to lease vacant
space in its Properties on economically favorable terms. At any
time, a tenant may seek the protection of the bankruptcy laws,
which could result in the rejection and termination of that tenant’s
lease and thereby cause a reduction in the cash available for 

distribution. If a tenant files for bankruptcy, the Company cannot
be sure that it will affirm its lease and continue to make rental 
payments in a timely manner. Some rents are based on a percentage
of the tenant’s sales. A downturn in a tenant’s business may weaken
its financial condition and result in a reduction in the percentage
rent paid by that tenant or in the failure to make rent payments
when due. Furthermore, certain of its tenants, including anchor 
tenants, hold the right under their leases to terminate their leases or
reduce their rental rate if certain occupancy conditions are not met,
if certain anchor tenants are closed, if certain sales levels or profit
margins are not achieved or if an exclusive use provision is violated,
all of which may adversely affect operating results.

Results of operations for the Properties depend on the economic 
conditions of the regions of the United States in which they are located
Results of operations and distributions to shareholders will be
subject generally to economic conditions in the regions in which
the Company’s Properties are located. For the year ended
December 31, 2003, approximately 19% of annualized minimum
rents came from Properties in Ohio. On January 5, 2004, the
Company acquired the remaining interests in Polaris Mall, LLC.,
the owner of Polaris Fashion Place, and Polaris Center, LLC., the
owner of Polaris Towne Center, a community center, both located
in Columbus, Ohio. If the two Polaris Properties were included as
of December 31, 2003, the percentage of annualized minimum
rents from Properties in Ohio would have been 28%.

Inability to successfully develop Properties or operate developed Properties
The Company intends to selectively pursue development 
projects. However, as a result of economic and other conditions,
development projects may not be pursued or may be completed
later or with higher costs than anticipated. These projects generally
require various governmental and other approvals, which the
Company cannot be sure it will receive. Development activities
involving significant risks include the expenditure of funds on and
devotion of time to projects which may not come to fruition; the
risk that construction costs of a project may exceed original 
estimates, possibly making the project uneconomical; the risk that
the Company may not be able to obtain construction financing
and permanent financing and the risk that such financing terms
may not be favorable; and the risk that occupancy rates and rents
at a completed project will not be sufficient to make the project
profitable. In the event of an unsuccessful development project,
the loss could exceed the investment in the project.

Certain limitations on Property sales and conflicts of interest
GPLP may not enter into certain transactions, including the sale of
all or substantially all of its assets, without consent from the holders
of a majority of the units of partnership interest in GPLP (excluding
Glimcher Realty Trust). This majority vote requirement effectively
means that any such transaction must be approved by Herbert
Glimcher and his sons, David Glimcher and Michael Glimcher,
because, together with their spouses, they own approximately 4.8%
of the units in Glimcher Properties Limited Partnership (which 
constitutes a majority of the units in GPLP other than those owned
by Glimcher Realty Trust) outstanding as of January 5, 2004.
This veto right may limit the Company’s ability to enter into a 
liquidating transaction that may be in the shareholders’ interest.



p27

As a result of Herbert Glimcher’s, David Glimcher’s and Michael
Glimcher’s status as holders of both Common Shares and units,
they have interests that conflict with shareholders with respect to
business decisions affecting Glimcher Realty Trust and Glimcher
Properties Limited Partnership. In particular, as holders of units,
they may suffer different and/or more adverse tax consequences
than Glimcher Realty Trust upon the sale or refinancing of some
of the Company’s Properties due to unrealized gains attributable
to these Properties.

Therefore, Glimcher Realty Trust may have objectives different
from Herbert Glimcher, David Glimcher and Michael Glimcher
regarding the appropriate pricing and timing of any sale or 
refinancing of certain of the Company’s Properties. Although the
Company (through a wholly owned subsidiary), as the sole general
partner of Glimcher Properties Limited Partnership, has the 
exclusive authority as to whether and on what terms to sell,
refinance or seek to purchase an interest in an individual property,
Herbert Glimcher, David Glimcher and Michael Glimcher might
seek to influence decisions with respect to these actions, even
though those actions might otherwise be financially advantageous
or adverse to Glimcher Realty Trust. They also may seek to 
influence management to refinance a Property with a higher level
of debt than would be in Glimcher Realty Trust’s best interests.

Significant costs related to environmental issues may be incurred
Under some environmental laws, a current or previous owner or 
operator of real property, and parties that generate or transport 
hazardous substances that are disposed of on real property, may be
liable for the costs of investigating and remediating these substances
on or under the property. The federal Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation & Liability Act, as amended, and similar
state laws, impose liability on a joint and several basis, regardless of
whether the owner, operator or other responsible party knew of or
was at fault for the presence of such hazardous substances. In 
connection with the ownership or operation of its Properties, the
Company could be liable for such costs in the future. The costs of
any required remediation and liability therefore as to any Property
could be substantial under these enactments and could exceed the
value of the Property and or its aggregate assets. The presence of
hazardous or toxic substances, or the failure to properly remediate
such substances, also may adversely affect the Company’s ability to
sell or rent a Property or to borrow funds using such Property as 
collateral. In addition, environmental laws may impose restrictions
on the manner in which the Company uses its Properties or operates
its business, and these restrictions may require expenditures for 
compliance.

The Company does not believe that it currently is subject to any
material environmental remediation obligations. However, it 
cannot provide assurance that a material environmental claim 
or compliance obligation will not arise in the future. The 
costs of defending against any claims of liability, of remediating a 
contaminated property or of complying with future environmental
requirements could be material and affect operating results.

Significant costs complying with the American with Disabilities Act and
similar laws may be incurred
Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, all public 
accommodations must meet federal requirements related to access
and use by disabled persons. The Company may incur additional
costs of complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act in the
future. Additional federal, state and local laws also may require 
modifications to Properties, or restrict the Company’s ability to 
renovate its Properties. The Company cannot predict the ultimate
cost of complying with these laws. If substantial costs are incurred 
to comply with this statute and any other legislation, the financial
condition, results of operations, cash flow, the Common Share value
and ability to pay distributions could be adversely affected.

Failure to qualify as a REIT would have serious adverse consequence
The Company believes that it qualifies as a REIT under the Federal
Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) since 1994, but cannot be
sure that it will remain so qualified. Qualification as a REIT
involves the application of highly technical and complex Code 
provisions, of which there are only a limited number of judicial 
or administrative interpretations, and the determination of
various factual matters and circumstances not entirely within 
the Company’s control and may impact the Company’s ability to
qualify as a REIT under the Code. In addition, the Company 
cannot be sure that legislation, new regulations, administrative
interpretations or court decisions will not significantly change the
tax laws relating to REITs, or the federal income tax consequences
of REIT qualification. Congress has proposed legislation to modify
certain tax rules concerning REITs. It is not known whether these
or other laws will be enacted in the future and, if enacted, what
impact they will have on its ability to operate as a REIT.

If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT, it will be subject to federal
income tax (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) on
taxable income at regular corporate income tax rates. In addition,
unless entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions, it will
also be disqualified from electing to be treated as a REIT for the four
taxable years following the year during which the qualification is
lost. That would reduce net earnings available for investment or 
distribution to shareholders because of the additional tax liability
imposed for the year or years involved. In addition, the Company
would no longer be required by the Code to make any dividend 
distributions as a condition to REIT qualification. To the extent
that dividend distributions to shareholders may have been made 
in anticipation of qualifying as a REIT, the Company might be
required to borrow funds or to liquidate certain of its investments
to pay the applicable tax.

Ownership interests in certain partnerships and other ventures are 
subject to certain tax risks
All of the Company’s property interests and other investments are 
made or held through Glimcher Properties Limited Partnership or 
partnerships, limited liability companies or other ventures in
which Glimcher Properties Limited Partnership has an interest
(the “Subsidiary Partnerships”). The ownership of these interests
may involve special tax risks for us. These risks include possible
challenge by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) of allocations of

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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income and expense items which could affect the computation of
the Company’s taxable income, or a challenge to the status of
GPLP or the Subsidiary Partnerships as partnerships (as opposed
to associations taxable as corporations) for federal income tax 
purposes, as well as the possibility of action being taken by, GPLP
or the Subsidiary Partnerships that could adversely affect 
qualification as a REIT, for example, by requiring the sale of a
property. The Company believes that GPLP and each of the
Subsidiary Partnerships have been and will be treated for tax 
purposes as partnerships (and not treated as associations taxable
as corporations). If the ownership interest in any entity taxable as
a corporation exceeded 10% (in terms of vote or value) of such
entity’s outstanding securities (unless such entity were a “taxable
REIT subsidiary,” or a “qualified REIT subsidiary,” as those terms
are defined in the Code) or the value of interest in any such entity
exceeded 5% of the value of the Company’s assets, the Company
would cease to qualify as a REIT; distributions from any of these
entities would be treated as dividends, to the extent of earnings
and profits; and the Company would not be able to deduct its
share of losses, if any, generated by such entity in computing its
taxable income.

Ability to access other sources of funds in order to meet REIT distribution
requirements
In order to qualify to be taxed as a REIT, the Company must make
annual distributions to shareholders of at least 90% of the REIT’s
taxable income (determined by excluding any net capital gain). The
amount available for distribution will be affected by a number of
factors, including cash flow generated by its Properties, distributions
received from its subsidiaries, operating expenses and capital 
expenditures. The Company has sold a number of non-core assets
and intends in the future to sell additional selected non-core assets.
The loss of rental income associated with the Properties sold will in
turn affect net income and FFO. In order to maintain REIT status,
the Company may be required to make distributions in excess of net
income and FFO. In such case, it may be necessary to arrange for
short-term (or possibly long-term) borrowings, or to issue preferred
or other securities, to raise funds.

There are limits on the ownership of Common Shares and limits on
changes in control resulting from a staggered board and ability to issue
preferred shares
In order to maintain the Company’s qualification as a REIT for 
federal income tax purposes, not more than 50% in value of the
outstanding Common Shares may be owned, directly or indirectly,
by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the Code to include 
certain entities) at any time during the last half of the taxable year.

To ensure that the Company will not fail to qualify as a REIT
under this test, the Company’s organizational documents 
authorize the trustees to take such action as may be required to
preserve qualification as a REIT and to limit any person, other
than Herbert Glimcher, David Glimcher and any of the trustees,
employees and other persons approved by the trustees, to direct or
indirect ownership of (i) 8.0% of the lesser of the number or value
of the outstanding Common Shares and (ii) 9.9% of the lesser 
of the number or value of the total Series G Preferred Shares 

outstanding. The trustees may not grant exemptions from these 
ownership limitations if it would cause the status as a REIT to 
terminate for federal income tax purposes. Herbert Glimcher and
David Glimcher are limited to an aggregate of 25% direct or 
indirect ownership of the Company’s Common Shares. The
trustees have also granted an exemption to Cohen & Steers Capital
Management, Inc. permitting them to own, directly or indirectly,
of record or beneficially (i) up to 600,000 Series F Preferred Shares
and (ii) up to 14.9% of the lesser of the number or values of the
outstanding shares of any other class of the Company’s equity
securities. However, in no event, shall they be permitted to own,
directly or indirectly, of record or beneficially, more than 14.9% of
the lesser of the number or value of all outstanding shares of the
Company’s equity securities. Despite these provisions, the
Company cannot be sure that there will not be five or fewer 
individuals who will own more that 50% in value of its outstanding
Common Shares, thereby causing the Company to fail to qualify as a
REIT. The ownership limits may also discourage a change of control
of the Company.

The Company’s Board of Trustees is divided into three classes. The
terms of Class I, Class II and Class III trustees currently expire in
2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Trustees for each class will be 
chosen for a three-year term upon the expiration of their current
term and each year one class of trustees will be elected by the 
shareholders. The staggered terms for trustees may affect the ability
of the shareholders to change control of the Company even if a
change of control were in the interests of the shareholders.

Certain financing arrangements contain limitations on the amount of
debt the Company may incur
The Company’s Credit Facility is the most restrictive of its financing
arrangements, and as of December 31, 2003, the total borrowings
outstanding under the Credit Facility were $80.8 million, and the
additional amount that may be borrowed from this facility or other
sources based upon the restrictive covenants in the Credit Facility
is $190.1 million as of December 31, 2003. The ratio of total-debt-
to-total-market capitalization was 55.5% as of December 31, 2003.
As used herein, “total market capitalization” means the sum of the
outstanding amount of all indebtedness, the total liquidation 
preference of all preferred shares and the total market value of
Common Shares and units of partnership interest of Glimcher
Properties Limited Partnership (based on the closing price of
shares as of December 31, 2003).

The variable rate of debt obligations may impede the Company’s 
operating performance and create a competitive disadvantage
Required repayments of debt and related interest can adversely
affect the Company’s operating performance. As of December 31,
2003, approximately $205.6 million of its indebtedness bears 
interest at a variable rate. After taking into account the $4.2 
million outstanding letters of credit, the Company has the ability
to borrow up to an additional $65.0 million under its existing
Credit Facility, which bears interest at a variable rate. An increase
in interest rates on existing indebtedness would increase interest
expense, which could adversely affect cash flow and ability to pay
distributions. For example, if market rates of interest on variable
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rate debt outstanding as of December 31, 2003, increased by 100
basis points, the increase in interest expense on existing variable
rate debt would decrease future earnings and cash flows by
approximately $1.7 million annually.

Financial condition and distributions could be adversely affected by
financial covenants
The Company’s mortgage indebtedness and Credit Facility impose 
certain financial and operating restrictions on its Properties and
also impose restrictions on subordinated financing secured by
such Properties and financings of other assets and Properties.
These restrictions include restrictions on borrowings, prepayments
and distributions. Additionally, the Credit Facility requires certain
financial tests to be met and some of the mortgage indebtedness
provides for prepayment penalties, each of which could restrict
financial flexibility.

Risks associated with information systems
The Company is continuing to implement new information systems
and problems with the design or implementation of these new 
systems could interfere with the Company’s operations.

The Company has successfully completed the first phase of its
enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) software implementation 
and is in the process of implementing the second phase of the
conversion to ERP to replace the lease administration, recoveries
accounting, budgeting and treasury management systems. The
Company may not be successful in implementing these new 
systems and transitioning data. Although the Company believes
that it has identified, to a large extent, potential problems that
could be associated with the implementation, unexpected 
problems could arise that have not been foreseen. As the Company
continues implementation and enhancing functionality, the 
operations could be further disrupted. Such disruptions could
adversely impact the ability to invoice tenants, process cash receipts
and generate key management reports and financial statements.

The failure to fully recover from tenants cost reimbursements for CAM,
taxes and insurance could adversely affect the Company’s operating result
The computation of cost reimbursements from tenants for CAM,
insurance and real estate taxes is complex and involves numerous
judgments including interpretation of terms and other tenant lease
provisions. Leases are not uniform in dealing with such cost 
reimbursements and there are variations in computations dealing
with such matters as: which costs are includable or not includable for
reimbursement, what is the square footage of the overall property
space to determine the pro-rata percentages and the applicability of
cost limitation provisions, among other things. Most tenants make
monthly fixed payments of CAM, real estate taxes and other cost
reimbursements items. The Company records these payments as
income each month. The Company also makes adjustments, positive
or negative, to adjust the recorded amounts to the Company’s best
estimate of the final amounts to be billed and collected with respect
to cost reimbursements. After the end of the calendar year, the
Company computes each tenant’s final cost reimbursements and
issues a bill or credit for the full amount, after considering amounts
paid by the tenants during the year. The differences between the

amounts billed, less previously received payments and the accrual
adjustments, are recorded as increases or decreases to cost recovery
income when the final bills are prepared, usually beginning in March
and completed by June. Final adjustments for the year ended
December 31, 2003 have not yet been determined. At December 31,
2003 the Company had recorded in accounts receivables $3.2 million
of costs expected to be recovered from tenants during the first six
months of 2004. Any amounts of this outstanding receivable balance
written off will be charged to bad debt expense at the end of the first
six months of 2004.

Significant competition exists which may decrease the occupancy and
rental rates of the Company’s Properties
The Company competes with many commercial developers, real
estate companies and major retailers. Some of these entities develop
or own malls, value-oriented retail properties and community 
shopping centers that compete for tenants. The Company faces
competition for prime locations and for tenants. New regional malls
or other retail shopping centers with more convenient locations 
or better rents may attract tenants or cause them to seek more
favorable lease terms at or prior to renewal. In addition, many 
traditional retailers compete for the same consumers. Furthermore,
retailers at the Properties may face increasing competition from 
e-commerce, outlet malls, discount shopping clubs, catalog 
companies, direct mail, telemarketing and home shopping networks.

Operations could be affected if the Company loses key management 
personnel
The executive officers of the Company have substantial experience
in owning, operating, managing, acquiring and developing 
shopping centers. Success depends in large part upon the efforts of
these executives, and the Company cannot guarantee that they will
remain with the Company. The loss of key management personnel
in leasing, finance, legal and operations could have a negative
impact on operations. In addition, there are no restrictions on the
ability of these executives to compete with the Company after 
termination of their employment.

Debt financing could adversely affect performance
The Company had $1.3 billion of combined mortgage indebtedness
and Credit Facility borrowings outstanding as of December 31,
2003. Of the outstanding debt, $263.1 million matures during
2004. As of December 31, 2003, the Company has borrowed $80.8
million from its $150 million secured Credit Facility which
matures on October 16, 2006. A number of outstanding loans will
require lump sum or “balloon” payments for the outstanding 
principal balance at maturity, and the Company may finance
future investments that may be structured in the same manner.
The ability to repay indebtedness at maturity or otherwise may
depend on its ability either to refinance such indebtedness or to
sell its Properties. If the Company is unable to repay any of its
debt at or before maturity, it may have to borrow against
Properties that are not encumbered or under its Credit Facility, to
the extent it has availability thereunder, to make such repayments.
In addition, a lender could foreclose on the Property or Properties
securing its debt. This could cause the Company to lose part or all
of its investment, which could reduce the value of Common
Shares and the distributions payable. Fourteen of the Company’s

GLIMCHER REALTY TRUST
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Properties are pledged as security for repayment of mortgage
indebtedness or indebtedness under its Credit Facility.

The Company’s Board of Trustees has unlimited authority to increase the
amount of debt the Company may incur
The Board of Trustees determines financing objectives and the
amount of the indebtedness the Company may incur and makes
revisions at any time without a shareholder’s vote. Although the
trustees have no present intention to change these objectives,
revisions could result in a more highly leveraged Company with an
increased risk of default on indebtedness and an increase in debt
service charges. The Company may also, without shareholder vote,
continue to use leverage through borrowing under its Credit
Facility and on its unencumbered Properties to increase the 
number and size of its investments.

Inflation
Inflation has remained relatively low during the past three years
and has had a minimal impact on the Company’s Properties. Many
tenants’ leases contain provisions designed to lessen the impact of
inflation. Such provisions include clauses enabling the Company
to receive percentage rentals based on tenants’ gross sales, which
generally increase as prices rise, and/or escalation clauses, which
generally increase rental rates during the terms of the leases. In
addition, many of the leases are for terms of less than 10 years,
which may enable the Company to replace existing leases with 
new leases at higher base and/or percentage rentals if rents in the
existing leases are below the then-existing market rate. Substantially
all of the leases, other than those for anchors, require the tenants to
pay a proportionate share of CAM, real estate taxes and insurance,
thereby reducing the Company’s exposure to increases in costs and
operating expenses resulting from inflation.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT 
MARKET RISK 

The Company’s primary market risk exposure is interest rate risk.
The Company uses interest rate protection agreements to manage
interest rate risks associated with long-term, floating rate debt. At
December 31, 2003 and 2002 approximately 84.1% and 70.9%,
respectively, of the Company’s debt, after giving effect to interest
rate protection agreements, bore interest at fixed rates with
weighted-average maturity of 6.4 years and 5.5 years, respectively,
and weighted-average interest rates of approximately 6.59% and
7.07%, respectively. The remainder of the Company’s debt at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, bears interest at variable rates with
weighted-average interest rates of approximately 4.09% and
5.21%, respectively.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the fair value of the Company’s
debt (excluding its Credit Facility) was $1,255.2 million and
$1,010.5 million, respectively, compared to its carrying amounts of
$1,214.3 million and $956.1 million, respectively. The Company’s
combined future earnings, cash flows and fair values relating to
financial instruments are dependent upon prevalent market rates of
interest, primarily LIBOR. Based upon consolidated indebtedness
and interest rates at December 31, 2003 and 2002, a 100 basis points

increase in the market rates of interest would decrease future 
earnings and cash flows by $1.7 million and $1.5 million,
respectively, and decrease the fair value of debt by approximately
$50.1 million and $27.4 million, at the respective balance sheet
dates. A 100 basis points decrease in the market rates of interest
would increase future earnings and cash flows by $1.7 million and
$1.5 million, respectively, and increase the fair value of debt by
approximately $54.0 million and $29.6 million, at the respective 
balance sheet dates. The Company has entered into certain cap and
floor agreements, which impact this analysis at certain LIBOR rate 
levels (see Notes 3 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements).

CAUTIONARY LANGUAGE CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS 

This annual report contains certain forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. Such statements are based on assumptions and
expectations which may not be realized and are inherently subject 
to risks and uncertainties, many of which cannot be predicted with
accuracy and some of which might not even be anticipated. Future
events and actual results, financial and otherwise, may differ from
the results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Risks and
other factors that might cause differences, some of which could be
material, include, but are not limited to: the effect of economic 
and market conditions; tenant bankruptcies; rejection of leases by
tenants in bankruptcy, the failure to qualify as a REIT (as herein
after defined), failure to consummate financing, including the
repayment of debt; development risks, including lack of satisfactory
equity and debt financing, construction and lease-up delays and cost
overruns; the level and volatility of interest rates; the consummation
of asset sales at acceptable prices; the financial stability of tenants
within the retail industry; the rate of revenue increases versus
expense increases; the failure of the closing of the sale of certain
properties to take place; the failure of the Company to use sale 
proceeds to reduce debt, the failure to attract innovative retailers,
the failure to complete planned redevelopments of properties, the
failure to close outparcel sales; the failure of the Company to make
additional investments in regional mall properties; and the failure 
to fully recover tenant obligations for CAM, taxes and other 
property expenses, as well as other risks listed from time to time 
in its Form 10-K and in other reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND SHAREHOLDERS OF GLIMCHER REALTY TRUST:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income, of shareholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Glimcher Realty Trust and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company, on January 1, 2001, adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, as amended and
interpreted. Also as discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company, on January 1, 2003, adopted
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation” as
amended by Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and
Disclosure” and adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44,

and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections”.

Columbus, OH
February 23, 2004, except for Note 20, as to which the date is February 27, 2004.
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(December 31,)

ASSETS 2003 2002

Investment in real estate:

Land $ 258,151 $ 215,758

Buildings, improvements and equipment 1,819,472 1,565,709

Developments in progress 18,123 20,740

2,095,746 1,802,207

Less accumulated depreciation 396,739 332,124

Property and equipment, net 1,699,007 1,470,083

Investment in unconsolidated real estate entities 8,827 23,047

Investment in real estate, net 1,707,834 1,493,130

Cash and cash equivalents 11,040 11,309

Restricted cash 20,476 18,566

Tenant accounts receivable, net 51,401 68,576

Deferred expenses, net 30,249 26,161

Prepaid and other assets 16,423 14,691

$ 1,837,423 $ 1,632,433

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Mortgage notes payable $ 1,214,258 $ 956,130

Notes payable 80,800 139,800

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 55,691 59,934

Distributions payable 22,559 21,057

1,373,308 1,176,921

Commitments and contingencies

Minority interest in operating partnership 22,176 29,020

Shareholders’ equity:

Series B cumulative preferred shares of beneficial interest, $0.01 par value,

5,118,000 shares issued and outstanding 127,950 127,950

Series F cumulative preferred shares of beneficial interest, $0.01par value,

2,400,000 shares issued and outstanding 60,000

Common shares of beneficial interest, $0.01 par value, 35,066,112 

and 34,314,646 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31,

2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively 350 343

Additional paid-in capital 516,694 509,401

Distributions in excess of accumulated earnings (261,828) (205,040)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,227) (6,162)

441,939 426,492

$ 1,837,423 $ 1,632,433

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands, except share and par value amounts)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

(for the years ended December 31,)

2003 2002 2001

Revenues:

Minimum rents $ 190,340 $ 154,736 $ 144,977

Percentage rents 8,148 7,069 6,574

Tenant reimbursements 91,655 79,820 70,963

Other 26,734 26,334 25,752

Total revenues 316,877 267,959 248,266

Expenses:

Real estate taxes 34,131 28,265 25,639

Property operating expenses 73,431 59,767 51,139

107,562 88,032 76,778

Provision for doubtful accounts 17,338 6,392 6,449

Other operating expenses 7,840 7,779 7,980

Write-off of development cost 854 420 3,208

Depreciation and amortization 66,686 55,870 51,619

General and administrative 9,998 10,285 11,175

Total expenses 210,278 168,778 157,209

Operating income 106,599 99,181 91,057

Interest income 209 634 1,187

Interest expense 81,355 86,161 85,760

Equity in income of unconsolidated entities 2,143 3,079 2,040

Income before minority interest in operating partnership,
discontinued operations, (loss) gain on sales of properties 
and cumulative effect of accounting change 27,596 16,733 8,524

Minority interest in operating partnership 842 2,334 3,519

Income from continuing operations 26,754 14,399 5,005

Discontinued operations:

(Loss) gain on sales of properties (3,913) 15,756

(Loss) income from operations (1,175) 6,099 20,421

Income before gain (loss) on sales of properties and cumulative
effect of accounting change 21,666 36,254 25,426

Gain (loss) on sales of properties 2,156 (610)

Income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of accounting change 23,822 36,254 24,816

Cumulative effect of accounting change (116)

Net income 23,822 36,254 24,700

Less: Preferred stock dividends 13,688 11,833 15,777

Add: Discount on redemption of preferred stock 22,440

Net income available to common shareholders $ 10,134 $ 24,421 $ 31,363

EPS available to common shareholders from continuing operations $ 0.43 $ 0.14 $ 0.47

Discontinued operations, (loss) gain on sale of properties and 
cumulative effect of accounting change $ (0.13) $ 0.61 $ 0.66

EPS (basic) $ 0.29 $ 0.75 $ 1.14

EPS available to common shareholders from continuing operations $ 0.42 $ 0.14 $ 0.47

Discontinued operations, (loss) gain on sale of properties and 
cumulative effect of accounting change $ (0.13) $ 0.61 $ 0.65

EPS (diluted) $ 0.29 $ 0.75 $ 1.12

Cash distributions declared per common share of beneficial interest $ 1.9232 $ 1.9232 $ 1.9232

Net income $ 23,822 $ 36,254 $ 24,700

Other comprehensive income (loss) on derivative instruments, net 4,935 304 (6,466)

Comprehensive income $ 28,757 $ 36,558 $ 18,234

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
(dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Balance, December 31, 2000 $ 90,000 $ 127,950

Distributions declared, $1.9232 per share

Distribution Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan

Exercise of stock options

401(k) Shares issued

OP unit conversion

Issuance of Shares from public offering

Preferred stock dividends declared, $2.3125 per share

Redemption of preferred equity (90,000)

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss) on derivative instruments

Transfer from minority interest in partnership

Balance, December 31, 2001 127,950

Distributions declared, $1.9232 per share

Distribution Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan

Exercise of stock options

OP unit conversion

Issuance of Shares from public offering

Preferred stock dividends declared, $2.3125 per share

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss) on derivative instruments

Transfer to minority interest in partnership

Balance, December 31, 2002 127,950

Distributions declared, $1.9232 per share

Distribution Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan

Exercise of stock options

OP unit conversion

Issuance of Shares from public offering $ 60,000

Preferred stock dividends declared

At $2.3125 per share

At $0.7717 per share

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss) on derivative instruments 

Other stock offering cost

Transfer to minority interest in partnership

Balance, December 31, 2003 $ 0 $ 127,950 $ 60,000

SERIES A-1 AND D
CONVERTIBLE

PREFERRED SHARES

SERIES B
CUMMULATIVE

PREFERRED SHARES

SERIES  F
CUMMULATIVE

PREFERRED SHARES
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23,821,652 $ 238 $ 355,430 $ (143,671) $ 429,947

(54,648) (54,648)

34,201 525 525

265,070 3 4,760 4,763

11,646 208 208

35,662 1 667 668

5,925,000 59 83,649 83,708

(15,777) (15,777)

22,440 (67,560)

24,700 24,700

$ (6,466) (6,466)

(3,543) (3,543)

30,093,231 301 441,696 (166,956) (6,466) 396,525

(62,505) (62,505)

29,571 539 539

602,467 6 8,749 8,755

139,377 1 2,497 2,498

3,450,000 35 58,198 58,233

(11,833) (11,833)

36,254 36,254

304 304

(2,278) (2,278)

34,314,646 343 509,401 (205,040) (6,162) 426,492

(66,923) (66,923)

27,709 560 560

413,532 4 6,833 6,837

310,225 3 6,701 6,704

(2,451) 57,549

(11,833) (11,833)

(1,854) (1,854)

23,822 23,822

4,935 4,935

62 62

(4,412) (4,412)

35,066,112 $ 350 $ 516,694 $ (261,828) $ (1,227) $ 441,939

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

COMMON SHARES OF
BENEFICIAL INTEREST

ADDITIONAL
PAID-IN
CAPITAL

DISTRIBUTIONS
IN EXCESS OF

ACCUMULATED EARNINGS

ACCUMULATED OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME/(LOSS) TOTALAMOUNTSHARES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands)

(for the years ended December 31,)

2003 2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 23,822 $ 36,254 $ 24,700

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Provision for doubtful accounts 18,689 6,601 7,047

Depreciation and amortization 66,988 61,570 60,230

Loan fee amortization 3,978 5,365 4,784

Equity in income of unconsolidated entities (2,143) (3,079) (2,044)

Capitalized development costs charged to expense 1,051 2,883 5,670

Minority interest in operating partnership 842 2,334 3,519

Cumulative effect of accounting change 116

Loss (gain) on sales of properties from discontinued operations 3,913 (15,756)

Gain (loss) on sales of properties (3,278) 610

Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Tenant accounts receivable, net (153) (13,313) (15,162)

Prepaid and other assets (2,562) (4,397) 1,803

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (10,550) (10,862) 10,392

Net cash provided by operating activities 100,597 67,600 101,665

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisitions and additions to investment in real estate (218,875) (53,129) (37,558)

Proceeds from (investment in) unconsolidated entities 4,382 786 (1,648)

Proceeds from sales of properties – operating 8,377 35,799

Proceeds from sales of properties – discontinued operations 18,093 196,326

(Payments to) withdrawals from restricted cash (1,256) 43,371 (38,183)

Additions to deferred expenses (10,950) (11,657) (16,292)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (200,229) 175,697 (57,882)

Cash flows from financing activities:

(Payments to) proceeds from revolving line of credit, net (59,000) (23,200) (400)

Proceeds from issuance of mortgages and notes payable 383,000 216,503 387,362

Principal payments on mortgages and notes payable (205,309) (426,470) (372,687)

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 825 3,212 1,099

Proceeds from issuance of common shares of beneficial
interest, net of underwriting and other offering costs of
$184 and $723 for 2002 and 2001, respectively 58,233 83,708

Proceeds from issuance of Preferred Stock – Series F, net of
underwriting and other offering costs of $2,451 57,549

Redemption of preferred shares (67,560)

Net proceeds from other issuance of shares 7,397 9,294 4,283

Cash distributions (85,099) (78,269) (76,293)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 99,363 (240,697) (40,488)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (269) 2,600 3,295

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period 11,309 8,709 5,414

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period $ 11,040 $ 11,309 $ 8,709

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Organization 

Glimcher Realty Trust (the “Company” or “GRT”) is a fully-
integrated, self-administered and self-managed Maryland real estate
investment trust (“REIT”), which owns, leases, manages and 
develops a portfolio of retail properties (the “Property” or
“Properties”) consisting of regional malls (“Malls”) and community
shopping centers (including single tenant retail properties)
(“Community Centers”). At December 31, 2003, the Company 
managed and leased a total of 70 Properties, of which 68 were 
wholly owned and two of which were partially owned in joint 
ventures, consisting of 25 Malls and 45 Community Centers.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of: (a) Glimcher Realty Trust (the “Company” or “GRT”);
(b) Glimcher Properties Limited Partnership (the “Operating
Partnership” or “GPLP”) (92.2% and 91.3% owned by GRT at
December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively), of which
Glimcher Properties Corporation (“GPC”), a Delaware corporation
and a wholly owned subsidiary of GRT, is the sole general partner;
(c) eight Delaware limited partnerships (Colonial Park Mall Limited
Partnership, Grand Central Limited Partnership, Glimcher
University Mall Limited Partnership, Montgomery Mall Associates
Limited Partnership, Catalina Partners Limited Partnership (wholly
owned by Colonial Park Mall Limited Partnership), Loyal Plaza
Venture Limited Partnership, Glimcher Loyal Plaza Tenant Limited
Partnership, and San Mall Limited Partnership); (d) twenty-seven
Delaware limited liability companies (Glimcher Northtown Venture,
LLC, Weberstown Mall, LLC, LC Portland, LLC, Johnson City
Venture, LLC, Mount Vernon Venture, LLC, JG Mezzanine, LLC,
Glimcher Westpark Plaza, LLC, Morningside Plaza, LLC, New
Boston Mall, LLC, Shady Springs Plaza, LLC, Southside Mall, LLC,
Glimcher Linden Corners, LLC, Glimcher Ashland Venture, LLC,
Glimcher River Valley Mall, LLC, Hocking Valley Mall, LLC,
Glimcher SuperMall Venture, LLC, Dayton Mall Venture, LLC,
Glimcher Columbia, LLC, Fairfield Village, LLC, Great Plains
MetroMall, LLC (owned 54% by Olathe Mall, LLC), GB Northtown,
LLC, Charlotte Eastland Mall, LLC, Glimcher WestShore, LLC, Jersey
Gardens Center, LLC, Glimcher Jersey Gardens, LLC (wholly owned
by JG Mezzanine, LLC), MFC Beavercreek, LLC and EM Ohio,
LLC); (e) one Colorado limited liability company (Olathe Mall,
LLC); (f) one Ohio limited partnership (Morgantown Mall
Associates Limited Partnership); (g) seventeen Delaware 
corporations, (Glimcher Grand Central, Inc., Glimcher
Morgantown Mall, Inc., Glimcher Tampa, Inc., Glimcher
Weberstown, Inc., Glimcher Blaine, Inc., Glimcher Montgomery,
Inc., GP Olathe, Inc., GP Metromall, Inc., Glimcher Johnson City,
Inc., Glimcher Mount Vernon, Inc., Glimcher Auburn, Inc.,
Glimcher Dayton Mall, Inc., Glimcher Colonial Park Mall, Inc.,
Glimcher Loyal Plaza, Inc., Glimcher Loyal Plaza Tenant, Inc., San
Mall Corporation and Glimcher Eastland, Inc); (h) two New Jersey
corporations, (Glimcher JG Urban Renewal, Inc. and N.J. Metromall

Urban Renewal, Inc. (wholly owned by JG Mezzanine, LLC)), and
(i) two Delaware business trusts (Glimcher Colonial Trust and
Colonial Park Trust (wholly owned by Colonial Park Mall Limited
Partnership)). All of the above entities, except as otherwise noted,
are wholly owned by GRT, GPLP and/or GPC. In 2003, the
Company held percentage ownership interests in the consolidated
entities ranging from 92.2% to 100.0%. GRT and the Operating
Partnership have investments in two joint ventures which are
accounted for under the equity method. The Operating Partnership
is (i) a 49.0% member in Polaris Center, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, whose managing member, Glimcher PTC, Inc., a
Delaware corporation that is wholly owned by GRT, is a 1.0% 
member and (ii) a 39.29% member in Polaris Mall, LLC, which
owns 100% of PFP Columbus, LLC, both Delaware limited liability
companies. Glimcher Development Corporation (“GDC”) and its
100% owned subsidiaries, Ohio Entertainment Corporation
(“OEC”) and Trans State Development, Inc., all Delaware 
corporations, are 100.0% owned by the Operating Partnership.
GDC is a 99% member in Trans State Development, LLC, a
Delaware Limited liability company, whose managing member is
Trans State Development, Inc., a 1% member. GDC provides 
development, construction, leasing and legal services to the
Company, ventures in which the Company has an ownership 
interest and to third parties.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the
accounts of the Company and the operating partnership for the
entities in the method described in the preceding paragraph. The
equity method of accounting is applied to entities in which the
Company does not have controlling direct or indirect voting 
interest, but can exercise influence over the entity with respect to
its operations and major decisions. These entities are reflected on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements as “Investments
in unconsolidated real estate entities”. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue Recognition

Minimum rents are recognized on an accrual basis over the 
terms of the related leases on a straight-line basis. Straight-line
receivables were $22,901 and $21,938 at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Percentage rents, which are based on tenants’
sales, are recognized once the sales reported by such tenants exceed
any applicable breakpoints as specified in the tenants’ leases.
Recoveries from tenants for real estate taxes, insurance and other
shopping center operating expenses are recognized as revenues 
in the period the applicable costs are incurred. Other revenues 
primarily consist of fee income which relates to property 
management services and is recognized in the period in which 
the service is performed, temporary tenant revenues which are 
recognized as earned and the proceeds from sales of development
land which are generally recognized at the closing date.
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Tenant Accounts Receivable
The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the Company’s estimate
of the amounts of the recorded accounts receivable at the balance
sheet date that will not be recovered from cash receipts in subsequent
periods. The Company’s policy is to record a periodic provision for
doubtful accounts based on total revenues. The Company also 
periodically reviews specific tenant balances and determines whether
an additional allowance is necessary. In recording such provision,
the Company considers a tenant’s creditworthiness, ability to pay,
probability of collection and consideration of the retail sector in
which the tenant operates. The allowance for doubtful accounts 
is reviewed periodically based upon the Company’s historical 
experience. The Company also analyzes the balance of its accounts
receivable based on estimates for real estate taxes, common area
maintenance and insurance for each of its Properties by comparing
actual recoveries versus actual expenses and any actual write-offs.
Based on this analysis, the Company may record an additional
amount in its allowance for doubtful accounts related to these items.
Tenant accounts receivable in the accompanying balance sheets are
shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $7,972 and
$6,253 as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Investment in Real Estate
Real estate assets, including acquired assets, are stated at cost. Costs 
incurred for the development, construction and improvement of
Properties are capitalized, including direct costs incurred by GRT 
for these activities. Interest and real estate taxes incurred during 
construction periods are capitalized and amortized on the same basis
as the related assets.

Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method
and estimated useful lives for buildings and improvements of forty
years and equipment and fixtures of five to ten years. Expenditures
for leasehold improvements and construction allowances paid to
tenants are capitalized and amortized over the term of each lease.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Effective January 1, 2002, management evaluates the recoverability
of its investment in real estate assets in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This 
statement requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that recoverability of the asset is not assured. Management’s 
assessment of recoverability of its real estate assets under this 
statement includes, but is not limited to, recent operating results,
expected net operating cash flow and management’s plans for 
future operations.

The Company recognizes property sales in accordance with SFAS No.
66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.” The Company generally
records the sales of operating properties and outparcels using the full
accrual method at closing when the earnings process is deemed to be
complete. Sales not qualifying for full recognition at the time of sale
are accounted for under other appropriate deferral methods.

Accounting for Acquisitions 
For purchases consummated subsequent to June 30, 2001, the 
effective date of the SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”,
the fair value of the real estate acquired is allocated to acquired 
tangible assets, consisting of land, building and tenant 
improvements, and identified intangible assets and liabilities,
consisting of the value of above-market and below-market leases for
acquired in-place leases and the value of tenant relationships, based
in each case on their fair values. Purchase accounting was applied,
on a pro-rata basis, to assets and liabilities related to real estate 
entities acquired based upon the percentage of interest acquired.

The fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property (which
includes land, building and tenant improvements) is determined by
valuing the property as if it were vacant based on management’s
determination of the relative fair values of these assets. Management
determines the as-if-vacant fair value of a property using methods
similar to those used by independent appraisers.

In determining the fair value of the identified intangible assets 
and liabilities of an acquired property, above-market and 
below-market in-place lease values are recorded based on the 
present value (using an interest rate which reflects the risks 
associated with the leases acquired) of the difference between (i)
the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in-place leases
and (ii) management’s estimate of fair market lease rates for the
corresponding in-place leases, measured over a period equal to 
the remaining non-cancelable term of the lease. The capitalized
above-market lease values of $5,931 and the capitalized 
below-market lease values of $13,189 are presented in accounts
payable and accrued expenses as a net liability of $7,258 for the
acquisitions through December 31, 2003 in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet and are amortized as a net increase to
rental income over the initial term.

The aggregate value of other acquired intangible assets, consisting of
in-place leases and tenant relationships, is determined by evaluating
the following factors. Factors considered by management in 
performing these analyses include an estimate of carrying costs 
during the expected lease-up periods, current market conditions
and similar leases. In estimating carrying costs, management
includes real estate taxes, insurance and other operating expenses
and estimates of lost rental revenue during the expected lease-up
periods based on current market demand. Management also 
estimates costs to execute similar leases including leasing 
commissions, legal and other related costs. No such amount has
been recorded.

Stock-Based Compensation
Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”, and as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure”,
prospectively to all awards granted, modified or settled on or 
after January 1, 2003. Accordingly, the Company recognizes as 
compensation expense the fair value of all awards granted after
January 1, 2003. Prior to January 1, 2003, the Company applied
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Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 25”) and 
related interpretations in accounting for its plans. Under the 
provisions of APB 25, the Company was not required to recognize
compensation expense related to options, as the options were 
granted at a price equal to the market price on the day of grant.
Had compensation cost for the plans been determined based on the
fair value at the grant dates for grants under these plans consistent
with SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income available to common
shareholders would have been decreased to the pro forma amounts
indicated below:

2003 2002 2001

Net income available to 
common shareholders:

As reported $ 10,134 $ 24,421 $ 31,363

Pro forma $ 10,076 $ 24,346 $ 31,245

Stock Compensation Expense:

Recorded in reported net income
for awards after January 1, 2003 $ 47 $ 0 $ 0

Included in Pro forma for awards
before January 1, 2003 $ 58 $ 75 $ 118

Earnings per share (basic):

As reported $ 0.29 $ 0.75 $ 1.14

Pro forma $ 0.29 $ 0.75 $ 1.13

Earnings per share (diluted):

As reported $ 0.29 $ 0.75 $ 1.12

Pro forma $ 0.29 $ 0.75 $ 1.12

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid 
investments purchased with original maturities of three months 
or less are considered to be cash equivalents. At December 31,
2003 and 2002, cash and cash equivalents primarily consisted of
overnight purchases of debt securities. The carrying amounts
approximate fair value.

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,”
requires the disclosures of the fair value of GRT’s financial instruments
for which it is practicable to estimate that value, whether or not such
instruments are recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. SFAS 
No. 107 does not apply to all balance sheet items and the Company has
utilized market information as available or present value techniques to
estimate the SFAS No. 107 values required to be disclosed. Since such 
values are estimates, there can be no assurance that the SFAS No. 107
value of any financial instrument could be realized by immediate 
settlement of the instrument.

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash consists primarily of cash held for real estate 
taxes, insurance and property reserves for maintenance and 
expansion or leasehold improvements as required by certain of
the loan agreements.

Deferred Expenses
Deferred expenses consist principally of financing fees, leasing 
commissions paid to third parties and direct costs related to 

leasing activities. These costs are amortized over the terms of the
respective agreements. Deferred expenses in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets are shown net of accumulated 
amortization of $21,127 and $16,577 as of December 31, 2003 
and 2002, respectively. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company
expensed $826, $2,260 and $1,299, respectively, of unamortized
financing fees in connection with the early retirement of debt.
Such amounts have been reported as interest expense in the
accompanying financial statements. In addition, in 2002 the
Company expensed $952 of unamortized financing fees in 
connection with the early retirement of debt from discontinued 
operations and recorded a $8,115 prepayment penalty as interest 
expense in discontinued operations.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Company recognizes all derivative financial instruments in 
the consolidated financial statements at fair value regardless of the
purpose or intent for holding the instrument. Changes in the fair
value of derivative financial instruments that qualify for hedge
accounting are recorded in stockholders’ equity as a component of
comprehensive income or as an adjustment to the carrying value
of the hedged item. Changes in fair values of derivatives not 
qualifying for hedge accounting are reported in earnings.

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as 
a cash flow hedge (i.e. hedging the exposure to variability in 
expected future cash flows that is attributable to a particular 
risk), the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative
instrument is reported as a component of accumulated other 
comprehensive income and reclassified into interest income or
interest expense in the same period or periods during which 
the hedged item affects interest income or interest expense.
The remaining gain or loss of the derivative instruments in excess
of the cumulative change in the present value of future cash flows
of the hedged item, if any, is ineffectiveness and is recognized in
other income/other expense during the period of change. Upon
termination of a derivative instrument prior to maturity, the
aforementioned adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive
income is amortized/accreted into interest income or interest
expense over the remaining term of the hedge relationship using
the effective interest method. Should the hedged item be sold,
mature or extinguished prior to the end of the hedge relationship
or a forecasted transaction is probable of not occurring, the 
aforementioned amounts in accumulated other comprehensive
income are reclassified to interest income or interest expense and
the derivative instrument’s change in fair value from that point
forward will be recorded in other income or other expense.

Interest Costs
(year ended December 31,)

2003 2002 2001

Interest capitalized $ 698 $ 900 $ 4,128

Interest expense 76,550 78,547 79,053

Amortization of loan fees 4,805 7,614 6,707

Total interest costs $ 82,053 $ 87,061 $ 89,888
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Investment in Unconsolidated Real Estate Entities
The Company accounts for its investments in unconsolidated real
estate entities using the equity method of accounting whereby the
cost of an investment is adjusted for the Company’s share of
equity in net income or loss from the date of acquisition and
reduced by distributions received. The income or loss of each
investee is allocated in accordance with the provisions of the 
applicable operating agreements. The allocation provisions in 
these agreements may differ from the ownership interest held 
by each investor. Differences between the carrying amount of
the Company’s investment in the respective investees and the
Company’s share of the underlying equity of such unconsolidated
entities are amortized over the respective lives of the underlying
assets as applicable.

Advertising Costs
The Company promotes its Properties on behalf of its tenants
through various media. Advertising is expensed as incurred and the
majority of the advertising expense is recovered from the tenants
through lease obligations. Net advertising expense was $2,106,
$1,164 and $1,807 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

Income Taxes
GRT files as a REIT under Sections 856-860 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). In order to 
qualify as a REIT, GRT is required to distribute at least 90.0% of
its ordinary taxable income to shareholders and to meet certain
asset and income tests as well as certain other requirements. GRT
will generally not be liable for federal income taxes, provided it
satisfies the necessary distribution requirements and maintain its
REIT status. Even as a qualified REIT, the Company is subject to
certain state and local taxes on its income and property.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company’s subsidiary, GDC, elected
taxable REIT subsidiary status under Section 856(l) of the Code.
The Company wholly owns GDC. For federal income tax purposes,
GDC is treated as a separate entity and taxed as a regular 
C-Corporation. In accordance with SFAS No. 109 “Accounting for
Income Taxes”, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and operating loss 
carryforwards of GDC. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Minority Interest 
Minority interest represents the aggregate partnership interest in
the Operating Partnership held by the Operating Partnership 
limited partner unit holders (the “Unit Holders”). Income 
allocated to minority interest is based on the Unit Holders 
ownership percentage of the Operating Partnership. The 
ownership percentage is determined by dividing the numbers of
Operating Partnership Units held by the Unit Holders by the 
total Operating Partnership Units outstanding. The issuance of
additional shares of beneficial interest (the Common “Shares” or
“Share”) or Operating Partnership Units changes the percentage

ownership of both the Unit Holders and the Company. Since a
unit is generally redeemable for cash or Shares at the option of
the Company, it is deemed to be equivalent to a Share. Therefore,
such transactions are treated as capital transactions and result in
an allocation between shareholders’ equity and minority interest in
the accompanying balance sheets to account for the change in the
ownership of the underlying equity in the Operating Partnership.

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities
Accounts payable of $3,020, $3,615 and $3,527 were accrued for
real estate improvements and other assets as of December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. During the fourth quarter of
2002, the Company issued 195,149 new Operating Partnership
units with a value of $3,176 in connection with the San Mall, LLC
transaction. Also, during the third quarter of 2001, the Company
issued 260,583 new Operating Partnership units with a value of
$4,000 in connection with the Polaris Mall, LLC transaction.

Share distributions of $16,860, $16,498 and $14,469 and Operating
Partnership distributions of $1,427, $1,577 and $1,534 had been
declared but not paid as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Series B cumulative preferred share distributions of
$2,959, $2,959 and $2,959 had been declared but not paid as of
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Series F cumulative
preferred share distributions of $1,313 had been declared but not
paid as of December 31, 2003. Amounts paid for interest, exclusive
of capitalized interest, were $76,520, $83,746 and $88,479 in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. Amounts paid for state and local taxes
were $765, $660 and $640 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

As a result of the Company’s acquisitions of joint venture interest
not previously owned, $80,439, $156,682 and $162,990 of debt was
assumed for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Accounts receivable balances have been written off against the
allowance for doubtful accounts for $15,619, $3,555 and $4,378 for
the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. For example,
estimates are used to establish common area maintenance, real estate
tax and insurance tenant accounts receivable, and accounts receivable
reserves. The Company bases its estimates on changes in Property
occupancy, mix of tenants and industry trends of tenant credit risk.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements 
In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45
(“FIN 45”) “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others (an interpretation of SFAS No. 57 and No. 107 and rescission
FIN 34)”. FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. 5 relating 
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to a guarantor’s accounting for, and disclosure of, the issuance of
certain types of guarantees, and requires that upon the issuance of a
guarantee, the guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value
of the obligation it assumes under that guarantee. The disclosure
requirements of FIN 45 are effective for financial statements of
periods ending after December 15, 2002. The recognition provisions
of FIN 45 are effective on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or
modified after December 31, 2002. There was no material impact on
the Company’s financial position as a result of this new 
pronouncement at December 31, 2003.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”, and as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure”,
prospectively to all awards granted, modified or settled on or 
after January 1, 2003.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 145
“Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment 
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections”, a standard
that addresses the classification of gains or losses from early 
extinguishment of debt. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 145,
the Company reported losses from the early extinguishment of
debt as extraordinary items. During the twelve months ended
December 31, 2002, the Company recorded $2,260 in extraordi-
nary items from operations and $9,067 in extraordinary items
from discontinued operations that resulted from the early 
extinguishment of debt. In 2003, these charges were reclassified 
to interest expense and income from discontinued operations,
respectively, to comply with SFAS No. 145. These reclassifications
had no impact on reported net income.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interests Entities – an Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” The
effective date of the interpretation has been postponed by FASB
Staff Position No. FIN 46-6 and will be effective the first interim 
or annual reporting period ending after March 15, 2004. The 
interpretation focuses on identifying entities for which a controlling
financial interest is achieved through means other than voting
rights. The potential impact of FIN 46 has been evaluated regarding
potential impact to the Company’s joint venture interests. Based
upon the analysis, the Company does not anticipate that FIN 46 
will have an impact on the Company’s financial position or results
of operations.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of
Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.
SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded 
in other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133.
In particular, SFAS No. 149 clarifies under what circumstances a
contract with an initial net investment meets the characteristics of
a derivative and when a derivative contains a financing component
that warrants special reporting in the statement of cash flows.
SFAS No. 149 is generally effective for contracts entered into or
modified after June 30, 2003. The Company has no immediate
impact as a result of this pronouncement.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for
Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both
Liabilities and Equity”. SFAS No. 150 establishes standards for 
how an issuer classifies and measures in its statement of financial
position certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial
instrument that is within the scope as a liability (or an asset in
some circumstances) because that financial instrument embodies
an obligation of the issuer. SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial
instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and 
otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003. There was no material impact on the
Company’s financial position as a result of this new pronouncement
at December 31, 2003.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of prior period amounts, including the 
presentation of the statements of operations required by SFAS No.
144, have been made in the financial statements to conform to the
2003 presentation.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

p42

3. MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE 

Fixed Rate

Glimcher Jersey Gardens, LLC $ 135,000 $ 135,000 4.31% 4.31% (a) $ 135,000 June 9, 2004

JG Mezzanine, LLC 28,141 29,517 10.53% 10.53% (b) $ 27,986 June 9, 2004

Montgomery Mall Associates, LP 44,909 45,526 6.79% 6.79% (b) $ 43,843 (d)

Weberstown Mall, LLC 19,617 19,839 7.43% 7.43% (b) $ 19,033 May 1, 2006

San Mall, LP 34,402 34,793 8.35% 8.35% (b) $ 32,623 (e)

Colonial Park Mall, LP 33,899 7.73% (b) $ 32,033 (e)

Charlotte Eastland Mall, LLC 45,974 7.84% (b) $ 42,323 (f)

Morgantown Mall Associates, LP 55,005 55,742 6.89% 6.89% (b) $ 50,823 (f)

Grand Central, LP 49,921 50,530 7.18% 7.18% (b) $ 46,065 Feb. 1, 2009

Johnson City Venture, LLC 39,957 40,288 8.37% 8.37% (b) $ 36,981 June 1, 2010

Ashland Venture, LLC 26,196 26,596 7.25% 7.25% (b) $ 21,817 Nov. 1, 2011

Dayton Mall Venture, LLC 58,171 58,819 8.27% 8.27% (b) $ 49,824 (g)

Glimcher WestShore, LLC 99,658 5.09% (b) $ 84,824 Sep. 9, 2012

University Mall, LP 66,158 67,203 7.09% 7.09% (b) $ 52,524 (h)

LC Portland, LLC 139,120 5.42% (b) $ 116,922 (i)

MFC Beavercreek, LLC 113,874 5.45% (b) $ 92,762 (j)

Glimcher SuperMall Venture, LLC 61,804 62,462 7.54% 7.54% (b) $ 49,969 (k)

Other Fixed Rate Debt 18,636 18,965 (l) (l) (b) $ 17,173 (m)

Tax Exempt Bonds 19,000 19,000 6.00% 6.00% (c) $ 19,000 Nov. 1, 2028

1,089,442 664,280

Variable Rate

Great Plains Metro Mall, LLC 25,000 25,000 5.05% 3.30% (n) (b) $ 25,000 July 9, 2004

Olathe Mall, LLC 17,000 17,000 9.17% 7.42% (o) (a) $ 17,000 (p)

Glimcher River Valley Mall , LLC 38,000 38,000 5.00% 5.00% (q) (a) $ 38,000 Dec. 31, 2004

EM Ohio, LLC 24,000 3.15% (r) (a) $ 24,000 Jan. 1, 2007

Other Variable Rate Debt 20,816 16,039 (s) (s) (a)(b) $ 20,463 (t)

124,816 96,039

Extinguished Debt 195,811 (u)

Total Mortgage Notes Payable $ 1,214,258 $ 956,130

CARRYING AMOUNT OF
MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE INTEREST RATE

INTEREST
TERMS

PAYMENT
TERMS/

PREPAYMENT
DATE

PAYMENT
AT

MATURITY
MATURITY

DATEDESCRIPTION

20022003 20022003

(a) The loan requires monthly payments of interest only.
(b) The loan requires monthly payments of principal and interest.
(c) The loan requires semi-annual payments of interest.
(d) The loan matures in August 2028, with an optional prepayment date in 2005.
(e) The loan matures in October 2027, with an optional prepayment date in 2007.
(f) The loan matures in September 2028, with an optional prepayment date in 2008.
(g) The loan matures in July 2027, with an optional prepayment date in 2012.
(h) The loan matures in January 2028, with an optional prepayment date in 2013.
(i) The loan matures in June 2033, with an optional prepayment date in 2013.
(j) The loan matures in November 2033, with an optional prepayment date in 2014.
(k) The loan matures in February 2028, with an optional prepayment date in 2015.

(l)  Interest rates ranging from 6.78% to 7.49% at December 31, 2003 and at December 31, 2002.
(m) Final maturity dates ranging from February 2007 to August 2011.
(n) Interest rate of LIBOR (capped by a derivative at 4.00%) plus 388 basis points until maturity.
(o) Interest rate of LIBOR (capped by a derivative at 4.00%) plus 800 basis points until maturity.
(p) On February 9, 2004, $17,000 of the principal balance was repaid.
(q) Interest rate equal to the greater of 5.00% or LIBOR plus 235 basis points.
(r) Interest rate of LIBOR plus 200 basis points.
(s) Interest rates ranging from LIBOR plus 195 to 250 basis points (3.09% to 3.69% at December31,

2003 and 3.38% to 4.00% at December 31, 2002).
(t) Final maturity dates ranging from May 2004 to August 2005.
(u) Interest rates ranging from 3.33% to 7.49% at December 31, 2002.

All mortgage notes payable are collateralized by certain Properties
owned by the respective entities with an aggregate net book value of
$1,493,456 and $1,202,975 at December 31, 2003 and December 31,
2002, respectively. Certain of the loans contain financial covenants
regarding minimum net operating income and coverage ratios.
Additionally, certain of the loans have cross-default provisions and
are cross-collateralized as part of a group of Properties. Under such
cross-default provisions, a default under any mortgage included in a
cross-defaulted package may constitute a default under all such
mortgages and may lead to acceleration of the indebtedness due 
on each Property within the collateral package. In general, the 
cross-defaulted Properties are under common ownership.
Additionally, $30,000 of mortgage notes payable relating to a
Property has been guaranteed by the Company.

Principal maturities (excluding extension options) on mortgage
notes payable during the five years subsequent to December 31,
2003, are as follows: 2004 $263,113; 2005 $69,603; 2006 $136,906;
2007 $84,459; 2008 $114,249; thereafter $626,728.

4. NOTES PAYABLE

On October 17, 2003, the Company entered into a new Credit
Facility that provides the Company with the ability to borrow up to
$150.0 million. This Credit Facility expires October 16, 2006 and
replaced the former line of credit, which was scheduled to mature on
January 31, 2004. The new Credit Facility is collateralized with first
mortgage liens on three Malls and eleven Community Centers with a
net book value of $136,368 at December 31, 2003. The interest rate
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on the new Credit Facility ranges from LIBOR plus 1.15% per
annum to LIBOR plus 1.70% per annum, depending on the
Company’s ratio of debt to asset value. The Credit Facility currently
bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 1.50% per annum. Payments
due under the Credit Facility are guaranteed by the Company.

The Credit Facility contains customary covenants, representations,
warranties and events of default, including maintenance of a 
specified minimum net worth requirement, loan to value ratios,
project costs to asset value ratios, total debt to asset value ratios 
and EBITDA to total debt service, restrictions on the incurrence of
additional indebtedness and approval of anchor leases with respect
to the Properties which secure the Credit Facility. The Company’s
most restrictive covenant is the total debt to asset value leverage
ratio which limits the Company’s outstanding debt to 65% of its
total asset value. At December 31, 2003, the outstanding balance on
the Credit Facility was $80.8 million. Additionally, $4.2 million 
represents a holdback on the available balance of the Credit Facility
for letters of credit issued under the Credit Facility. As of December
31, 2003, the unused balance of the Credit Facility available to the
Company was $65.0 million.

5. INCOME TAXES

The following table reconciles the Company’s net income to taxable
income for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

2003 2002 2001

Net income $ 23,822 $ 36,254 $ 24,700

Add: Net loss of taxable
REIT subsidiaries 1,738 2,211 3,296

Net income from REIT
operations (1) 25,560 38,465 27,996

Add: Book depreciation
and amortization 61,189 60,926 54,116

Less: Tax depreciation
and amortization (51,454) (49,976) (43,256)

Book loss/(gain) from
capital transactions 1,612 (6,154) (827)

Tax (loss)/gain from
capital transactions (1,602) 2,483 (1,445)

Other book/tax differences, net (8,096) (2,535) 16,129

Taxable income before
adjustments 27,209 43,209 52,713

Less: Capital gains – (21,400) (3,685)

Adjusted taxable income subject
to 90% dividend requirement $ 27,209 $ 21,809 $ 49,028

(1) All adjustments to “Net income from REIT operations” are net of amounts 
attributable to minority interest and taxable REIT subsidiaries.

Reconciliation between cash dividends paid and dividends paid
deduction:

The following table reconciles cash dividends paid with the 
dividends paid deduction for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001:

2003 2002 2001

Cash dividends paid $ 78,937 $ 72,309 $ 70,610

Less: Dividends designated
to prior year (19,457) (17,428) (14,410)

Plus: Dividends designated
from following year 21,131 19,457 17,428

Less: Portion designated return
of capital (53,402) (31,129) (20,915)

Dividends paid deduction $ 27,209 $ 43,209 $ 52,713

Characterization of distributions
The following table characterizes distributions paid per common share for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

The following table characterizes distributions paid per preferred
share Series B for the year ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Ordinary 
income $ 0.3888 20.22% $ 0.4870 25.32% $ 1.0985 57.12%

Return
of Capital 1.5344 79.78 0.9583 49.83 0.7412 38.54

Capital
gains 0.0000 00.00 0.0839 4.36 0.0370 1.92

Unrecaptured
Section
1250 gain 0.0000 00.00 0.3940 20.49 0.0465 2.42

$ 1.9232 100.00% $ 1.9232 100.00% $ 1.9232 100.00%

2003 2002 2001

AMOUNT % AMOUNT % AMOUNT %

Ordinary 
income $ 2.3125 100.00% $ 1.1672 50.47% $ 2.1495 92.95%

Return
of Capital 0.0000 00.00 0.0000 0.00 0.0000 0.00

Capital
gains 0.0000 00.00 0.2011 8.70 0.0722 3.12

Unrecaptured
Section
1250 gain 0.0000 00.00 0.9442 40.83 0.0908 3.93

$ 2.3125 100.00% $ 2.3125 100.00% $ 2.3125 100.00%

2003 2002 2001

AMOUNT % AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
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2003
AMOUNT %

Ordinary income $ 0.7717 100.00%

Return of Capital 0.0000 0.00

Capital gains 0.0000 0.00

Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain 0.0000 0.00

$ 0.7717 100.00%

Deferred income taxes represent the tax effect of the differences
between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities of GDC.
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) include the following:

2003 2002 2001

Deferred tax assets (liabilities):

Investment in partnership $ 0 $ (27) $ 0

Capitalized development costs (158) (367) (2,025)

Depreciation and amortization 6 0 (69)

Allowance for doubtful accounts 40 40 40

Charitable contributions 9 0 0

Other 2 0 0

Tax loss carryforwards, net 2,384 2,673 3,101

Net asset deferred tax asset (liability) 2,283 2,319 1,047

Valuation allowance (2,283) (2,319) (1,047)

Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

The gross tax loss carryforwards total $5,959 and expire $1,096,
$4,508 and $355 in 2012, 2018 and 2020, respectively.

The income tax provision consisted of $49, $48 and $39 in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively, related to current state and local taxes.
Net deferred tax expense for each of the years was $0. The income
tax expense reflected in consolidated statements of operations differs
from the amount determined by applying the federal statutory rate
of 34% to the income before taxes of the Company’s taxable REIT
subsidiaries as a result of state income taxes and the utilization of tax
loss carryforwards of $929, $969 and $1,644 in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. A full valuation allowance had previously been provided
against the tax loss carryforwards utilized.

In 2003, the Company continued to maintain a valuation allowance
for the Company’s net deferred tax assets, which consisted primarily
of tax loss carryforwards. The valuation allowance was determined
in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109 “Accounting for
Income Taxes” which requires the recording of a valuation
allowance when it is more likely than not that any or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. In absence of favorable 
factors, application of SFAS No. 109 requires a 100% valuation
allowance for any net deferred tax assets when a company has
cumulative financial accounting losses, excluding unusual items,
over several years. The Company’s cumulative loss represented 

negative evidence sufficient to require a full valuation allowance
under the provisions of SFAS No. 109. The Company intends to
maintain a full valuation allowance for its net deferred tax asset
until sufficient positive evidence exists to support reversal of the
reserve. Until such time, except for minor state and local tax 
provisions, the Company will have no reported tax provision, net 
of valuation allowance adjustments.

6. PREFERRED SHARES

The Company’s Declaration of Trust authorizes the Company 
to issue up to an aggregate 100,000,000 shares of the Company,
consisting of common shares and/or one or more series of preferred
shares of beneficial interest.

On November 17, 1997, the Company completed a $120,000 
public offering of 4,800,000 shares of 9¼% Series B cumulative
preferred shares of beneficial interest (the “B Preferred Shares”).
On November 25, 1997, the Company sold an additional 318,000
B Preferred Shares as a result of the underwriters exercising the
over-allotment option granted to them. Aggregate net proceeds of
the offering were $123,072. Distributions on the B Preferred
Shares are payable quarterly in arrears. The Company generally
may redeem the B Preferred Shares anytime on or after November
15, 2003, at a redemption price of $25.00 per share, plus accrued
and unpaid distributions. The proceeds from a new preferred
offering in January 2004 were used to redeem these shares.
The new offering transaction is disclosed in Note 20.

The redemption price (other than the portion thereof consisting
of accrued and unpaid distributions) is payable solely out of the
sale proceeds of other capital shares of the Company, which may
include other series of preferred shares. The Company contributed
the proceeds to the Operating Partnership in exchange for 
preferred units. The Operating Partnership pays a preferred 
distribution to the Company equal to the dividends paid on 
the B Preferred Shares.

On March 9, 1999, the Board of Trustees adopted a Preferred Share
Purchase Plan (the “Plan”) pursuant to which a distribution will be
made of one preferred share purchase right (a “Right”) for each 
outstanding common share. The distribution was made on March
22, 1999, to the shareholders of record at the close of business on
that date. Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from
the Company one one-hundredth of a Series E Junior Participating
Preferred Share of the Company, par value $0.01 per share (the
“Preferred Shares”), at a price of $55.00 per one one-hundredth of a
Preferred Share (the “Purchase Price”), subject to adjustment. The
Rights will become exercisable in the event that any person or group
acquires or announces its intention to acquire beneficial ownership
of 15.0% or more of the outstanding common shares of the
Company (an “Acquiring Person”). Alternatively, each Right holder,
except the Acquiring Person, will have the right to receive upon
exercise that number of common shares having a market value of
two times the Purchase Price of the Right. At any time before any
person or group becomes an Acquiring Person, the Board of
Trustees may redeem the Rights at a price of $0.01 per Right at
which time the right to exercise the Rights will terminate. At any
time after a person or group becomes an Acquiring Person, the
Board of Trustees may exchange the Rights at an exchange ratio 
of one common share or one Preferred Share per Right. The Plan
expires on March 9, 2009.

The following table characterizes distributions paid per preferred
share Series F for the year ended December 31, 2003:
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On August 25, 2003, the Company completed a $60,000 public 
offering of 2,400,000 shares of 8.75% Series F cumulative preferred
shares of beneficial interest , par value $0.01 per share, (the “Series F
Preferred Shares”), at a purchase price of $25.00 per Series F
Preferred Share. Aggregate net proceeds of the offering were $58,110.
Distributions on the Series F Preferred Shares are payable quarterly
in arrears. The Company generally may redeem the Series F Preferred
Shares anytime on or after August 25, 2008, at a redemption price of
$25.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid distributions.

7. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative
Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities” and interpreted by
Derivatives Implementation Group Issues. SFAS No. 133, as 
amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for 
derivative instruments. Specifically, SFAS No. 133 requires an 
entity to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the
financial statements and to measure those instruments at fair value.

The adoption of the new standard resulted in a cumulative effect
transition loss adjustment of $195 to other comprehensive income
to recognize the fair values of the interest rate swap agreements as of
January 1, 2001. The Company also recognized a cumulative effect
transition loss adjustment of $116 in earnings as of January 1, 2001,
to recognize the fair values of the interest rate caps. During the year
ended December 31, 2001, the Company recognized additional
other comprehensive loss of $6,271 to adjust the carrying amount of
the interest rate swaps and caps to their fair values at December 31,
2001, which includes $4,966 in reclassifications to earnings for 
interest rate swap settlements and interest rate cap amortization
during the period and $822 in minority interest participation.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company recognized
additional other comprehensive income of $304 to adjust the 
carrying amount of the interest rate swaps and caps to fair values 
at December 31, 2002, which includes $7,189 in reclassifications to
earnings for interest rate swap settlements during the period and
$121 in minority interest participation. During the year ended
December 31, 2003, the Company recognized additional other 
comprehensive income of $4,935 to adjust the carrying amount of
the interest rate swaps and caps to their fair values at December 31,
2003, which includes $6,688 in reclassifications to earnings for 
interest rate swap settlements and interest rate cap amortization
during the period and $552 in minority interest participation.

The interest rate swap settlements were offset by a corresponding
reduction in interest expense related to the interest payments being
hedged.

The Company may be exposed to the risk that variability in cash
flows might impact the results of operations of the Company. Our
hedging strategy, therefore, is to eliminate or reduce, to the extent
possible, the volatility of cash flows. The following table summarizes
the notional values and fair values of the Company’s derivative 
financial instruments as of December 31, 2003. The notional values
provide an indication of the extent of the Company’s involvement in
these instruments at that time, but does not represent exposure to
credit, interest rate or market risks.

Swap – Cash Flow $ 162,000 2.34% June 15, 2004 $ (991)

Sold Cap – Cash Flow $ 162,000 7.00% June 15, 2004 –

Cap – Cash Flow $ 165,000 7.00% June 15, 2004 –

Cap – Cash Flow $ 42,000 4.00% July 15, 2004 –

On December 31, 2003, the derivative instruments were reported at
their aggregate fair value of $(991) in accounts payable and accrued
expenses in the accompanying balance sheet, with a corresponding
adjustment to other comprehensive income for the unrealized gains
and losses (net of minority interest participation). The unrealized
gains and losses held in accumulated other comprehensive income
will be reclassified to earnings in future periods, of which $1,227 is
expected to be reclassified in 2004. This reclassification will correlate
with the recognition of the hedged interest payments in earnings.
There was no hedge ineffectiveness during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2003.

To determine the fair values of derivative instruments, the
Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are
based on market conditions and risks existing at each balance
sheet date. Standard market conventions and techniques such as
undiscounted cash flow analysis, replacement cost and termination
cost are used to determine fair value.

8. RENTALS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 

The Company receives rental income from the leasing of retail 
shopping center space under operating leases with expiration 
dates through the year 2027. The minimum future base rentals
under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2003 
are as follows:

2004 $ 206,850

2005 182,069

2006 159,671

2007 138,772

2008 119,560

Thereafter 111,012

$ 917,934

Minimum future base rentals do not include amounts which may be
received from certain tenants based upon a percentage of their gross
sales or as reimbursement of real estate taxes and property operating
expenses. Minimum rents contain straight-line adjustments for
rental revenue increases which aggregated $2,065, $2,214 and $2,233
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
In 2003, 2002 and 2001, no tenant collectively accounted for more
than 10.0% of rental income. The tenant base includes national,
regional and local retailers, and consequently the credit risk is 
concentrated in the retail industry.

HEDGE
TYPE

NOTIONAL
VALUE

INTEREST
RATE

MATURITY FAIR
VALUE
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9. INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES 

At December 31, 2003, investment in unconsolidated real estate
entities consists of a 50.00% interest in Polaris Center, LLC, and 
a 39.29% interest in Polaris Mall, LLC. At December 31, 2002,
investment in unconsolidated real estate entities consists of a
50.00% interest in Colonial Park Mall Limited Partnership, a
50.00% interest in Polaris Center, LLC, a 20.00% interest in
Charlotte Eastland Mall, LLC, a 39.29% interest in Polaris Mall,
LLC and a 50.00% interest in G & G Blaine, LLC.

The share of net income for the period January 1, 2001 through
March 31, 2001, includes the Company’s 30.00% interest in
Elizabeth MetroMall, LLC and Jersey Gardens Center, LLC.
Effective April 6, 2001, the Company acquired an additional
30.00% interest in each entity and subsequently, in May 2001
acquired the remaining 40.00% interest in each entity. The share of
net income for the period January 1, 2001 through July 17, 2002,
includes the Company’s 37.85% interest in Glimcher SuperMall
Venture, LLC. Effective July 18, 2002, the Company acquired the
remaining third party interests in Glimcher SuperMall Venture,
LLC. The share of net income from January 1, 2001 through
August 4, 2002, includes the Company’s 50.00% interest in Dayton
Mall Venture, LLC. Effective August 5, 2002, the Company
acquired the remaining third party interest in Dayton Mall
Venture, LLC. Additionally, the share of net income for the period
January 1, 2001 through November 17, 2002 includes the
Company’s 20.00% interest in San Mall, LLC. Effective November
18, 2002, the Company acquired the remaining 80.00% interest in
this entity. The share of net income for the nine months ended
September 30, 2002, includes the Company’s 20.00% joint venture
interest in San Mall, LLC. Also, the share of net income for the
period January 1, 2002 through March 5, 2003 includes the
Company’s 50.00% joint venture interest in Colonial Park Mall
Limited Partnership. Effective March 6, 2003, the Company
acquired the remaining 50.00% third party interest in this entity.
Additionally, the share of net income for the period January 1,
2002 through April 23, 2003 includes the Company’s 50% joint 
venture interest in G & G Blaine, LLC. Effective April 24, 2003, the
Company acquired the remaining 50% third party interest in this
entity. Furthermore, the share of net income for the period January
1, 2002 through August 13, 2003 included the Company’s 20%
interest in Charlotte Eastland Mall, LLC. Effective August 14, 2003,
the Company acquired the remaining 80% third party interest in
this entity. As a result, the entities mentioned above are fully 
consolidated as of July 18, 2002, August 5, 2002, November 18, 2002,
March 6, 2003, April 24, 2003 and August 14, 2003, respectively.

GDC provides development, construction, leasing and legal 
services for a fee, to joint ventures in which the Company has an
ownership interest. GDC recognized fee income of $235, $1,776,
and $2,447 for services provided to the joint ventures for the year
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The summary financial information of the Company’s 
unconsolidated real estate entities and a summary of the Operating
Partnership’s investment in and share of net income (loss) from
such unconsolidated entities follow:

BALANCE SHEETS
(December 31,)

2003 2002

Assets:

Investment properties at cost, net $ 184,497 $ 285,299

Other assets 13,238 20,578

$ 197,735 $ 305,877

Liabilities and Members’ Equity:

Mortgage note payable $ 190,465 $ 242,486

Other liabilities 8,326 16,550

198,791 259,036

Members’ equity (1,056) 46,841

$ 197,735 $ 305,877

Operating Partnership’s Share of

Members’ equity $ 961 $ 16,997

RECONCILIATION OF MEMBERS’ EQUITY TO COMPANY 
INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES:

Members’ equity $ 961 $ 16,997

Advances to (from) and additional costs 7,866 $ 6,050

Investment in unconsolidated entities $ 8,827 $ 23,047

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(for the years ended December 31,)

2003 2002 2001

Total revenues $ 40,890 $ 81,928 $ 92,626

Operating expenses 14,689 35,056 40,819

Net operating income 26,201 46,872 51,807

Depreciation and amortization 8,702 15,976 18,140

Other expenses 132 714 1,809

Interest expense, net 13,163 22,323 26,335

Net income $ 4,204 $ 7,859 $ 5,523

Company’s share of net income $ 2,284 $ 3,126 $ 2,040

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

In connection with its initial public offering in 1994, the Company
and its affiliates acquired several properties (the “Glimcher
Properties” or singularly, a “Glimcher Property”) from Herbert
Glimcher, David J. Glimcher and entities, or the beneficial owners 
of such entities, affiliated with Herbert Glimcher and David J.
Glimcher (collectively, the “Glimcher Entities”). Herbert Glimcher 
is the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. David J. Glimcher is a former executive officer and
trustee of the Company, a son of Herbert Glimcher, and a brother 
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of Michael Glimcher, the Company’s President. In addition, at the
time, the Company was granted options (“Purchase Options”) to
purchase, at the lower cost of ninety percent (90%) of its fair market
value (as determined by a third party independent appraiser selected
by the independent trustee), the interest of certain of the Glimcher
Entities in such parcels. As of December 31, 2003, the Company
had Purchase Options in connection with the following parcels:
(i) three undeveloped outparcels contiguous to four of the
Glimcher Properties aggregating approximately 95.43 acres, (ii) 
an approximately 58.7 acre parcel of undeveloped land in
Delaware County, Ohio, which is not contiguous to any of the
Glimcher Properties; and (iii) various other parcels of
undeveloped land which are not contiguous to any of the
Glimcher Properties, ranging in size from less than one acre to
approximately 12.7 acres. Each Purchase Option is exercisable only
if the respective parcel is developed as a retail property.

During 1999, the Company exercised its option to purchase 28.695
acres of land located adjacent to The Mall at Fairfield Commons for
approximately $5,000 from an Ohio Limited partnership in which
Herbert Glimcher, Michael P. Glimcher, other immediate Glimcher
family members and William R. Husted, former Senior Vice
President of the Company and Douglas W. Campbell, Vice President
Construction Services of the Company have an ownership interest
(the “Beavercreek Partnership”). In connection with such purchase,
GPLP issued to the Beavercreek Partnership a promissory note for
the entire purchase price in the amount of $5,000, which bears
interest at a rate equal to 30 days LIBOR, calculated on the first day
of each month, plus 160 basis points. The maturity date of the note
had been extended to January 2004, but was paid in full on April 2,
2003. Approximately $0, $4,909 and $4,924 is included in accounts
payable at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, relating
to this transaction. Interest paid was $100, $286 and $300 for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The Company paid The Glimcher Company (“TGC”) and
Corporate Flight, Inc. (“CFI”), which are both wholly owned by
Herbert Glimcher, $7 and $305 for the year ended December 31,
2003, $26 and $499 for the year ended December 31, 2002 and $5
and $324 for the year ended December 31, 2001, respectively, for the
use in connection with Company related matters, of a coach owned
by TGC and an airplane owned by CFI. The Company’s joint 
ventures made no payments for the year ended December 31, 2003,
$1 and $63 for the year ended December 31, 2002 and $8 and $85
for the year ended December 31, 2001, respectively. Additionally, the
Company paid Triad CM (“Triad”), fifty percent (50%) of which
was owned by TGC, which is wholly owned by Herbert Glimcher,
$137, $1,409 and $630 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively, in connection with subcontracting work at
the Company’s Properties. TGC disposed of its entire interest in
Triad effective in September 2003, and therefore transactions 
subsequent to October 1, 2003 are not disclosed. The joint ventures
controlled by the Company or in which the Company has a 
minority interest and is a passive investor paid Triad approximately
$1,869, $1,500 and $4,200 for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. Glimcher Development Corporation
(“GDC”), an entity owned by GRT, provided services to TGC for
predevelopment work on two projects in 2003 and was paid $59 for
those services.

With respect to the development of Polaris Fashion Place in
Columbus, Ohio, pursuant to the requirements of the Construction
Loan Agreement, dated October 13, 2000, with The Huntington
National Bank, Key Bank National Association, National City Bank
and The Provident Bank (the “Construction Loan Agreement”),
Herbert Glimcher provided the Bank Group with a $4,000 letter of
credit (“Letter of Credit”) to guarantee certain obligations of the
Company under the Construction Loan Agreement. The Letter of
Credit was terminated on May 29, 2002. At December 31, 2002 the
Company accrued $40 as consideration to Herbert Glimcher for 
providing the Letter of Credit to the banks. Such consideration was
regarded as the equivalent of the amount a bank would charge to
issue such Letter of Credit. That fee was paid to Herbert Glimcher 
in March 2003.

The Company has engaged Archer-Meek-Weiler Agency, Inc.,
(“AMW”), a company of which Alan R. Weiler (a trustee of GRT
serving a three-year term which expires in 2005) is Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, as its agent for the purpose of obtaining
property, liability and employee practices liability insurance coverage.
In connection with securing such insurance coverage, AMW received
net commissions of $253, $224 and $186 for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

On January 5, 2004, GPLP completed the acquisition of the joint
venture interests not previously owned by the Company in Polaris
Mall, LLC, the indirect owner of Polaris Fashion Place, an enclosed
approximately 1.6 million square foot super regional mall located in
Columbus, Ohio, from NPLP and other parties. The Company
acquired the remaining 60.7% interest in Polaris Mall, LLC for
approximately $46,500, which was paid with approximately $33,000
in cash and the balance by the issuance of 594,342 Operating Units
in GPLP valued at approximately $13,500.

On January 5, 2004, GPLP also completed the acquisition of the
joint venture interests not previously owned by the Company in
Polaris Center, LLC, the owner of Polaris Town Center, a 443,165
square foot town center located in Columbus, Ohio, from NPLP.
The Company acquired the remaining 50% interest in Polaris
Center, LLC for approximately $10,000, which was paid in cash.

Mr. Weiler, his spouse and children own, in its entirety, WSS Limited
Partnership, an Ohio limited partnership (“WSS”). WSS directly
owns units of limited partnership in GPLP (“Units”). WSS also 
indirectly owns Units in GPLP by virtue of its ownership interest in
NP Limited Partnership, an Ohio limited partnership (“NPLP”).
WSS also owns an interest in Star-Weiler Limited Partnership, an
Ohio limited partnership (“Star-Weiler”). Star Weiler owns an 
interest in NPLP. Mr. Weiler’s children, nieces and nephews also 
indirectly own an interest in NPLP. In addition, Mr. Weiler’s sister-in-
law previously owned an interest in Polaris Mall, LLC, which interest
was acquired by GPLP on January 5, 2004.

Following the acquisition of the joint venture interests not previously
owned by the Company in Polaris Mall, LLC and Polaris Center,
LLC, NPLP and WSS continue to directly own Units.

On March 31, 1999 the Company acquired a 20.0% interest in San
Mall LLC (“San Mall”), which owns Almeda Mall and Northwest
Mall in Houston, Texas. The Company accounted for its investment
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in San Mall under the equity method of accounting. On February 22,
2001, Fifth Avenue, LLC (“Fifth Avenue”) acquired the 80.0% 
ownership interest previously held by an unaffiliated third party.
Fifth Avenue is wholly owned by the daughter of Herbert Glimcher,
the Chairman of the Company’s Board of Trustees and the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, and the sister of Michael
Glimcher, the President of the Company. On November 18, 2002,
the Company acquired the remaining 80.0% interest in San Mall L.P.
from Fifth Avenue for $5,500, which was paid $2,324 in cash and
$3,176 in the form of 195,149 Operating Partnership units.

The Company provides management and leasing services to San
Mall, LLC under an operating agreement entered into in 1999. For
the periods January 1, 2002 through November 18, 2002 and
February 22, 2001 through December 31, 2001, the Company 
recognized fee income of $202 and $167, respectively, under such
agreement. After the acquisition of the remaining interest,
management fees were no longer charged to the consolidated
Properties. Total revenues and net income of San Mall, LLC were
$12,203 and $1,277, respectively, for the period January 1, 2002
through November 18, 2002 and $12,441 and $2,602, respectively,
for the period February 22, 2001 through December 31, 2001.

On May 10, 2002, the Company sold Plaza Vista Mall, a 214,000
square foot community center to a group of private investors, which
included David Glimcher. The sale price was $9,937, including cash
of $2,237 and the assumption of a $7,700 mortgage note payable.
The Company recognized a gain of $1,194 on the sale. An estimated
receivable for CAM, tax and insurance related to 2002 recoveries for
Plaza Vista Mall is included in accounts receivable for approximately
$75 at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002.

A brother of Herbert Glimcher owns a company that leases seven
store locations in the Company’s Properties. Minimum Rents were
$268, $266 and $117 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002,
and 2001, respectively, and prepaid amounts from these tenants
were $0, $0, and $32 at December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively.

Herbert Glimcher has provided a loan guarantee to a private company
unaffiliated with the Company that leases space commencing
November 16, 2002 in a Mall in which the Company has a joint 
venture interest. Minimum rent was $21 for the year ended 
December 31, 2003.

The Glimcher Group, owned by Robert Glimcher, a son of Herbert
Glimcher, the Chairman of the Company’s Board of Trustees and the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, and a brother of Michael
Glimcher, the President of the Company, owes the Company $10 
for reimbursement of expenses for shared space at a convention in
May 2003. The David J Glimcher Co., owned by David Glimcher,
reimbursed the Company $10 related to expenses for shared space 
at a convention in May 2003.

In the second and third quarters of 2002, Trans State Development,
LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into 
certain options with an unrelated third party to purchase land in
Mason, Ohio for a proposed development of a regional mall and
community center. At the December 19, 2002 Board of Trustees
meeting, the Company informed the Board it did not intend to 
proceed with the development of the proposed project. Trans State
Development, LLC assigned its land options to HP Development

LLC (“HP”) on January 31, 2003 pursuant to the terms of an
Assignment Agreement. The Assignment Agreement provided for
reimbursement by HP to Trans State Development, LLC of all costs
it had incurred to the date of the assignment in conjunction with
the options. In addition, on January 31, 2003, the Company entered
into a Master Leasing Agreement with HP for the Company to 
provide leasing, legal and pre-development services. Beginning in
February 2003, advances were made from Ellen Glimcher, doing
business as Dell Property Group, Ltd, to HP. The Board of Trustees
was unaware of these fund transfers or the involvement with HP 
of Ellen Glimcher through Dell Property Group, Ltd. During 
the year ended December 31, 2003, HP received $471 from Dell
Property Group, Ltd., of which $350 was used to make payments 
to the Company for the land options and services provided under
the Master Leasing Agreement during the year ended December 31,
2003. Ellen Glimcher is the daughter of Herbert Glimcher, the
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and the sister of Michael Glimcher, the President of the Company.
On December 11, 2003, the Company cancelled the Master Leasing
Agreement between HP and Trans State Development, LLC and HP
assigned the land options to Trans State Development. In consideration
for the assignment of the options, Trans State Development agreed to
reimburse HP Development for costs incurred related to the project
plus a $25 service fee, for a total of $696. The Board of Trustees was
unaware of the transfer of funds from Dell Property Group, Ltd. or
the involvement of Ellen Glimcher through Dell Property Group
Ltd. with HP at the time the land options were assigned to HP on
January 31, 2003 or assigned to the Company on December 11,
2003. At December 31, 2003, the Company had a payable of $696 
to HP which was paid by the Company on January 15, 2004.
In February 2004, the Board of Trustees became aware of the 
involvement of and funds transferred by Ellen Glimcher through
Dell Property Group Ltd. to HP. In February 2004, the Audit
Committee of the Board of Trustees considered and approved 
each of the past transactions as part of its determination for the
Company to proceed with the project.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Operating Partnership leases office space under an operating 
lease that had an initial term of four years commencing on July
2004. Additionally, three of GRT’s Properties are subject to 
long-term ground leases where a third party owns the underlying
land and has leased the land to GRT. GRT pays rent, ranging from
$14 to $28 per annum, for the use of the land and generally is
responsible for the costs and expenses associated with maintaining
the building and improvements thereto. Future minimum rental
payments as of December 31, 2003 are as follows:

OFFICE LEASE GROUND LEASES

2004 $ 415 $ 50

2005 415 43

2006 432 43

2007 432 43

2008 43

Thereafter 711

$ 1,694 $ 933
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Office rental expenses (including miscellaneous month-to-month
lease rentals) for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
were $572, $593 and $651, respectively. Ground lease expenses for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $59, $59
and $59, respectively.

The Company has provided guarantees in connection with the
outstanding debt of Polaris Fashion Place in which the Company
is an equity member. In connection with the development of
Polaris Fashion Place, the Operating Partnership provided the
lender with a completion guarantee and an unconditional 
guarantee of payment of $60,000 (50.0% of the outstanding 
obligation on the indebtedness on the property). Upon refinancing
of the construction loan on April 1, 2003, these guarantees were
released. In connection with the new mortgage loan the Operating
Partnership provided the lender with a guarantee until certain 
tenant allowances are paid. The guarantee was $2,941 at December
31, 2003. As of December 31, 2003, no reserves for losses have
been provided in connection with this guarantee, as the Company
does not expect to incur any liability.

In addition, in July 1998, the New Jersey Economic Development
Authority issued approximately $140,500 of Economic
Development Bonds. On May 29, 2002, the New Jersey Economic
Development Authority refunded certain of the Economic
Development Bonds issued in 1998 and issued approximately
$108,940 of replacement Economic Development Bonds. The
Company began making quarterly Payment In Lieu of Taxes
(“PILOT”) payments commencing May 2001 and terminating on the
date of the final payment of the bonds. Such PILOT payments are
treated as real estate tax expense in the statements of operations. The
amount of the annual PILOT payments beginning with the bond
year ended 2001 was $8,925 and increases 10.0% every five years
until the final payment is made. The Company has provided a 
limited guarantee of franchise tax payments to be received by the city
until franchise tax payments achieve $5,600 annually; any such 
payments made by the Company are subject to refund from future
franchise tax payments.

The Company has reserved $232 in relation to a contingency 
associated with the sale of Loyal Plaza, a community center sold in
2002, relating to environmental assessment and monitoring matters.

12. SHARE OPTION PLANS

GRT has established the Employee Share Option Plan (the
“Employee Plan”), the Trustee Share Option Plan (the “Trustee
Plan”) and the 1997 Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”) for the
purpose of attracting and retaining the Company’s trustees,
executive and other employees. A maximum of 400,000 shares
have been reserved for issuance under the Employee Plan, a 
maximum of 700,000 shares have been reserved for issuance under
the Trustee Plan and a maximum of 3,000,000 shares have been
reserved for issuance under the Incentive Plan.

A summary of the status of the Company’s three option plans at
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 and changes during the years
ending on those dates is presented below. Options issued under
the Incentive Plan are included under the Trustee Plan and
Employee Plan.

Trustee Plan:

Outstanding at
beginning of year 1,193,500 $17.458 1,222,500 $17.360 1,256,500 $17.541

Granted 96,000 $14.750 121,000 $17.610 121,000 $18.930

Exercised (52,000) $14.819 (87,000) $15.087 (206,500) $18.259

Forfeited (15,000) $16.181

Outstanding at 
end of year 1,222,500 $17.360 1,256,500 $17.541 1,171,000 $17.558

Employee Plan:

Outstanding at
beginning of year 1,241,014 $15.738 1,371,023 $15.717 1,018,767 $16.925

Granted 411,500 $14.750 278,250 $17.662 325,000 $18.930

Exercised (213,070) $15.475 (515,467) $14.439 (207,032) $14.811

Forfeited (68,421) $14.044 (115,039) $15.456 (72,509) $17.293

Outstanding at
end of year 1,371,023 $15.717 1,018,767 $16.925 1,064,226 $17.958

Options exercisable 
at year-end under
the Trustee Plan 967,167 1,081,500 979,330

Options exercisable
at year-end under
the Employee Plan 686,087 545,307 540,007

Weighted-average
fair value of options
granted during
the year $ 0.1204 $ 0.3341 $ 0.4560

The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of
the grant using the Black-Scholes options pricing model with the
following assumptions: weighted average risk free interest rates
used in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were 6.2%, 6.3% and 5.6%,
respectively. Expected average lives of five years, annual dividend
rates of $1.9232 and weighted average volatility of 11.8%, 12.0%
and 12.6% in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

2001

WEIGHTED-

AVERAGE

EXCERCISE

PRICE

2001

WEIGHTED-

AVERAGE

EXCERCISE

PRICE

2001

WEIGHTED-

AVERAGE

EXCERCISE

PRICEOPTIONSOPTIONS OPTIONS



All but 21,000 options granted under the plans in 2003, 2002 and
2001 will be exercisable at the rate of 33.3% per annum over 
a three-year period beginning with the first anniversary of the 
date of grant and will remain exercisable through the tenth
anniversary of such date. Options for 21,000 Shares were 
exercisable immediately, and will remain exercisable through the
tenth anniversary of such date.

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN - 401(K) PLAN 

In January 1996, the Company established a qualified retirement
savings plan under Code 401(k) for eligible employees which 
contains a cash or deferred arrangement which permits participants
to defer up to a maximum of 15.0% of their compensation, subject
to certain limitations. Employees 21 years old or above who have
been employed by the Company for at least six months are eligible
to participate. Participant’s salary deferrals up to a maximum of
4.0% of qualified compensation will be matched at 50.0%. The
Company contributed $190, $262 and $208 to the plan in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

14. DISTRIBUTION REINVESTMENT AND SHARE PURCHASE PLAN

The Company has a Distribution Reinvestment and Share Purchase
Plan under which its shareholders or Operating Partnership unit
holders may elect to purchase additional common shares of
beneficial interest and/or automatically reinvest their distributions
in Shares. In order to fulfill its obligations under the plan, the
Company may purchase Shares in the open market or issue Shares
that have been registered and authorized specifically for the plan.
As of December 31, 2003, 2,100,000 Shares were authorized of
which 204,585 Shares have been issued.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The presentation of primary EPS and diluted EPS is summarized in
the table below:
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The following table summarizes information regarding the options
outstanding at December 31, 2003 under the Company’s plans:

Trustee Plan:

$20.250 51,500 0.1 $ 20.250 51,500 $ 20.250

$20.250 1,500 1.2 $ 20.250 1,500 $ 20.250

$17.000 51,000 2.2 $ 17.000 51,000 $ 17.000

$18.750 – $20.750 293,000 3.4 $ 20.115 293,000 $ 20.115

$20.500 110,000 4.4 $ 20.500 110,000 $ 20.500

$15.000 273,000 5.2 $ 15.000 273,000 $ 15.000

$12.280 81,000 6.2 $ 12.280 81,000 $ 12.280

$14.750 81,000 7.2 $ 14.750 56,000 $ 14.750

$17.610 112,000 8.2 $ 17.610 45,330 $ 17.610

$18.930 – $22.360 117,000 9.2 $ 18.930 17,000 $ 18.930

$12.280 – $22.360 1,171,000 5.2 $ 17.558 979,330 $ 17.486

Employee Plan:

$20.250 29,850 0.1 $ 20.250 29,850 $ 20.250

$17.000 15,750 2.2 $ 17.000 15,750 $ 17.000

$18.750 – $21.875 61,300 3.4 $ 19.604 61,300 $ 19.604

$20.500 172,000 4.4 $ 20.500 172,000 $ 20.500

$15.000 25,000 5.2 $ 15.000 25,000 $ 15.000

$12.280 29,373 6.2 $ 12.280 29,373 $ 12.280

$14.750 191,023 7.2 $ 14.750 127,349 $ 14.750

$17.610 – $18.330 238,180 8.2 $ 17.670 79,385 $ 17.670

$18.930 – $22.360 301,750 9.2 $ 19.052

$12.280 – $22.360 1,064,226 7.0 $ 17.958 540,007 $ 17.809

NUMBER
OUTSTANDING AT
DECEMBER 31, 2003

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE

REMAINING
CONTRACTUAL

LIFE

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE

EXCERCISE
PRICE

NUMBER
EXCERCISABLE  AT
DECEMBER 31, 2003

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE

EXCERCISE
PRICE

RANGE OF
EXCERCISE

PRICES

(options outstanding) (options excercisable)
(for the year ended December 31, 2003)

INCOME SHARES PER SHARE

Basic EPS

Income from 
continuing operations $ 26,754

Less: Preferred
Stock Dividends (13,688)

Add: Discount on
redemption of
preferred stock

Gain (loss) on sale 2,156

Add: Minority
interest adjustments (429)

14,793 34,704 $ 0.43

Effect of Dilutive 
Securities

Operating
Partnership units 1,271 3,151

Options 366

Diluted EPS

Income from
continuing operations $ 16,064 38,221 $ 0.42

(for the year ended December 31, 2002)

INCOME SHARES PER SHARE

Basic EPS

Income from 
continuing operations $ 14,399

Less: Preferred
Stock Dividends (11,833)

Add: Discount on
redemption of
preferred stock

Gain (loss) on sale

Add: Minority
interest adjustments 1,963

4,529 33,866 $ 0.14

Effect of Dilutive 
Securities

Operating
Partnership units 371 3,122

Options 260

Diluted EPS

Income from
continuing operations $ 4,900 35,748 $ 0.14

(for the year ended December 31, 2001)

INCOME SHARES PER SHARE

Basic EPS

Income from 
continuing operations $ 5,005

Less: Preferred
Stock Dividends (15,777)

Add: Discount on
redemption of
preferred stock 22,440

Gain (loss) on sale (610)

Add: Minority
interest adjustments 1,958

13,016 27,604 $ 0.47

Effect of Dilutive 
Securities

Operating
Partnership units 1,561 3,244

Options 220

Diluted EPS

Income from
continuing operations $ 14,577 31,048 $ 0.47
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Options with exercise prices greater than the average share prices 
for the periods presented were excluded from the respective 
computations of diluted EPS because to do so would have been
antidilutive. The number of such options was 225, 904 and 1,058 
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The impact of discontinued operations, gain (loss) on sales of
properties, extraordinary item and cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of minority interest, on basic and diluted EPS is 
summarized in the table below:

(for the years ended December 31,)

2003 2002 2001

BASIC DILUTED BASIC DILUTED BASIC DILUTED

Discontinued operations $(0.13) $(0.13) $0.61 $0.61 $0.67 $0.66

Cumulative effect of
accounting change $(0.00) $(0.01)

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
tenant accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
are reasonable estimates of their fair values because of the short
maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying value of the
Credit Facility is also a reasonable estimate of its fair value because 
it bears variable rate interest at current market rates. Based on the
discounted amount of future cash flows using rates currently 
available to GRT for similar liabilities (ranging from 3.12% to 6.76%
per annum at December 31, 2003 and 3.33% to 7.58% per annum at
December 31, 2002), the fair value of GRT’s mortgage notes payable
is estimated at $1,255,181 and $1,010,512 at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. The fair value of the debt instruments considers in
part the credit of GRT as an entity, and not just the individual 
entities and Properties owned by GRT.

The fair value of interest rate protection agreements are estimated
based on amounts that GRT would expect to receive or pay to 
terminate such agreements (see Note 7). Both the fair values and
carrying amounts of the interest rate protection agreements were
$(991) at December 31, 2003 and $(7,009) at December 31, 2002,
respectively.

17. SEGMENT REPORTING 

The Company concentrates its business on two broad types of
retail Properties, Malls and Community Centers. Regional Malls
are generally enclosed Properties that serve a large population base
and feature department store anchors and a broad range of
national retailers. Community Center Properties are smaller retail
properties, serving a neighborhood with discount and grocery
store anchors and a limited number of other retail concepts.

Selected information about operating segments of the Company is
summarized in the table below:

(for the year ended December 31, 2003)

COMMUNITY

MALLS CENTERS CORPORATE TOTAL

Total revenues $ 283,962 $ 30,748 $ 2,167 $ 316,877

Total operating 
expenses 184,552 14,512 11,214 210,278

Operating
income (loss) $ 99,410 $ 16,236 $ (9,047) $ 106,599

Equity in income
of unconsolidated
entities $ 1,145 $ 998 $ 0 $ 2,143

Net property and
equipment $ 1,526,514 $ 169,510 $ 2,983 $ 1,699,007

Total assets $ 1,627,222 $ 184,323 $ 25,878 $ 1,837,423

Investment in
unconsolidated
entities $ 5,995 $ 2,832 $ 0 $ 8,827

(for the year ended December 31, 2002)

COMMUNITY

MALLS CENTERS CORPORATE TOTAL

Total revenues $ 235,136 $ 31,540 $ 1,283 $ 267,959

Total operating 
expenses 142,980 13,703 12,095 168,778

Operating
income (loss) $ 92,156 $ 17,837 $ (10,812) $ 99,181

Equity in income
of unconsolidated
entities $ 2,612 $ 467 $ 0 $ 3,079

Net property and
equipment $ 1,265,110 $ 195,665 $ 9,308 $ 1,470,083

Total assets $ 1,365,182 $ 210,165 $ 57,086 $ 1,632,433

Investment in
unconsolidated
entities $ 19,757 $ 3,290 $ 0 $ 23,047

(for the year ended December 31, 2001)

COMMUNITY

MALLS CENTERS CORPORATE TOTAL

Total revenues $ 212,194 $ 33,332 $ 2,740 $ 248,266

Total operating 
expenses 127,357 13,829 16,023 157,209

Operating
income (loss) $ 84,837 $ 19,503 $ (13,283) $ 91,057

Equity in income
of unconsolidated
entities $ 1,130 $ 910 $ 0 $ 2,040

Net property and
equipment $ 1,087,243 $ 447,868 $ 14,570 $ 1,549,681

Total assets $ 1,167,093 $ 507,987 $ 84,439 $ 1,758,519

Investment in
unconsolidated
entities $ 43,171 $ 4,830 $ 0 $ 48,001
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18. ACQUISITIONS

The Company accounts for acquisitions under the purchase method
of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations”. The purchase allocation is based on the information
available at this time. Subsequent adjustments and refinements to
the allocation may be made, based on additional information. The
Company believes any subsequent adjustments will be immaterial.

On December 22, 2003, GPLP acquired Eastland Mall (“Eastland
Ohio”), a 940,000 (unaudited) square foot enclosed regional mall 
in Columbus, Ohio, from Columbus East Joint Venture, an Ohio
general partnership. The purchase price of $29.65 million was paid
with (i) the proceeds from a $24 million three-year mortgage loan
from The Huntington National Bank that bears interest at a per
annum rate of LIBOR plus 200 basis points and (ii) approximately
$5 million of borrowings on the Company’s line of credit. The
Company may, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions,
also borrow up to an additional $12 million under the bank loan to
fund costs relating to the addition of a new anchor and other
improvements to the Mall. The repayment of the loan has been
guaranteed by each of GPLP and Glimcher Properties Corporation,
the general partner of GPLP.

On August 27, 2003, the Company, through its operating 
partnership, GPLP, acquired WestShore Plaza Mall, a fully enclosed
regional shopping mall located in Tampa, Florida, from American
Freeholds, a Nevada general partnership, which is sponsored by
Grosvenor USA. Approximately $100 million of the $152 million
purchase price was funded with a new nine-year mortgage loan,
which bears interest at the fixed rate of 5.09% per annum and
requires payments of principal based on a 30-year principal 
amortization schedule. The additional $52 million was funded
using a portion of the net proceeds of the 8.75% Series F
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Share offering that was 
completed by the Company on August 25, 2003.

On August 14, 2003, GPLP completed the acquisition of the joint
venture interest not previously owned by the Company in Eastland
North Carolina, an enclosed regional mall located in Charlotte,
North Carolina, from HIG Mall, LLC, a Florida limited liability
company. The Company acquired the remaining 80% interest for
$4.75 million in cash. The property had an outstanding mortgage
balance of $46.2 million on the acquisition date. The existing 
mortgage, which originated in 1998, matures on September 11,
2008. The debt bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.84% per annum
and requires payments of principal based on a 30-year principal
amortization schedule.

On April 24, 2003, GPLP completed the acquisition from
Greyhawke Net Lease Investors III, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, of the 50% interest not previously owned by the
Company in G & G Blaine, LLC, and a related parcel of land for
approximately $2.96 million in cash. With the completion of this
transaction, GPLP is the sole owner of a vacant anchor building and
underlying land at Northtown Mall in Minneapolis, Minnesota.
Northtown Mall is wholly owned by the Company.

On March 6, 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of the
joint venture interest not previously owned by the Company in
Colonial Park Mall, an enclosed regional mall located in Harrisburg,
Pennsylvania, from LB Colonial Park, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company. The Company acquired the remaining 50% 
interest for $5.5 million in cash. The property had an outstanding
mortgage balance of $34.3 million on the acquisition date. The
existing mortgage, which originated in 1997, matures in 2027, with
an optional prepayment dated in 2007. The debt bears interest at a
fixed rate of 7.73% per annum.

For the five acquisitions listed above and the three acquisitions
made during 2002, the Company calculated the proforma results
of operations as if the acquisitions occurred on January 1, 2002
(unaudited):

2003 2002

Pro forma revenues $ 345,327 $ 313,824

Pro forma net income $ 13,519 $ 31,750

Pro forma earnings per share-diluted $ 0.35 $ 0.89

Intangibles associated with acquisitions of WestShore Plaza Mall
and Eastland Ohio account for a net liability of $7,258 for below
market leases. These intangibles are being amortized as a net
increase to minimum rents on a straight-line basis over the lives 
of the leases with a weighted average amortization period of 12.2
years. Amortization in 2003 was $158, resulting in a net book
value of $7,100 for the intangible at December 31, 2003. Estimated
amortization of this intangible will be as follows:

For the year ending December 31, 2004 $ 537

For the year ending December 31, 2005 428

For the year ending December 31, 2006 395

For the year ending December 31, 2007 507

For the year ending December 31, 2008 623

$ 2,490
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In 2003, the Company acquired from its joint venture partners the
remaining interest in Eastland North Carolina, G & G Blaine and
Colonial Park malls. In addition, the Company also acquired
WestShore Plaza and Eastland Ohio. A condensed balance sheet 
disclosing the amount assigned to each major asset and liability 
caption of these acquired entities at the date each one was acquired:

ASSETS

Investment in real estate:

Land $ 43,490

Buildings, improvements and equipment 240,400

Developments in progress 80

283,970

Investment in unconsolidated real estate entities (11,981)

Investment in real estate, net 271,989

Restricted cash 654

Tenant accounts receivable, net 3,074

Deferred expenses, net 1,061

Prepaid and other assets 468

$ 277,246

LIABILITIES

Mortgage notes payable $ 204,439

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,488

$ 219,927

The acquisition of Polaris Fashion Place and Polaris Towne Center,
completed on January 5, 2004, will result in the additions to the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet in the following major 
categories in January 2004:

Net investment in real estate $ 220,932

Mortgage notes payable $ 234,071

The Company has not completed its allocation of fair value for 
the acquisition of Polaris Fashion Place and Polaris Towne Center
as required under SFAS No. 141 and the amounts above are 
preliminary. The Company expects to complete this analysis 
prior to the filing of their Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2004.

19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During 2003, the Company sold five Community Centers for $18.6
million and reflected two other Community Centers as held for sale.
The company recorded a net loss on the sale of the centers of
$3,913, which, in accordance with SFAS No. 144, is reported in
Discontinued Operations. Total revenues for these assets were
$1,426, $3,539, and $3,921 for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. For segment reporting purposes,
revenues and expenses, including interest expense, would have been
reported as part of Community Centers.

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 5, 2004, the Company acquired from the joint venture
partners the remaining 60.7% interest in Polaris Mall, LLC, the
owner of Polaris Fashion Place, an approximately 1.6 million 
(unaudited) square foot upscale regional mall located in Columbus,
Ohio, for approximately $46.5 million, consisting of $32.9 million in
cash and the balance by the issuance of 594,342 operating units in
GPLP. Polaris Fashion Place is subject to an approximately $148.7
million mortgage which matures in 2013, bears interest at a fixed
rate of 5.24% per annum and is being repaid based on a 30-year
principal amortization schedule.

On January 5, 2004, the Company acquired from the joint venture 
partner the remaining 50% interest in Polaris Center, LLC, owner
of the Polaris Towne Center, a 443,165 (unaudited) square foot
community center located in Columbus, Ohio, for approximately
$10.0 million, which was paid for all in cash. The Polaris Towne
Center is subject to an approximately $41.8 million mortgage
which matures in 2010, bears interest at a fixed rate of 8.20% 
per annum and is being repaid based on a 30 year principal 
amortization schedule.

After completing the acquisition of the joint venture partners’
remaining interests in Polaris Fashion Place and Polaris Towne
Center, the Company no longer owns any Properties through joint
ventures. The cash portion of the purchase price for Polaris Mall,
LLC was paid in part with the proceeds of a new $36.5 million loan
from Bank One. The repayment of this loan has been guaranteed 
by Polaris Mall, LLC. In addition, as security for repayment of the
loan, GPLP has pledged to Bank One 100% of its limited liability
company interest in Polaris Mall, LLC and has entered into a 
negative pledge agreement with Bank One, whereby it has agreed
not to grant a lien on twenty-five of GPLP’s Properties. In addition,
the cash portion of the purchase price for Polaris Mall, LLC was paid
in part with approximately $6.6 million in additional borrowings 
on the Company’s secured line of credit from Key Bank National
Association and a consortium of Banks. The $36.5 million loan
matures in one year and bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus
3.00% per annum. The Company intends to repay this loan during
2004 using Community Center asset sale proceeds, the issuance of
additional preferred or common equity, or a combination of the
foregoing.

On February 17, 2004, the Company sold Morgantown Plaza, a
103,364 square foot community center in Star City, WV, for $1.9
million. The cash proceeds were used to pay down the Company’s
outstanding variable rate debt. Morgantown Plaza was classified as
held for sale at December 31, 2003 and the operating results of the
property were included in discontinued operations.

On February 20, 2004, the Company sold Cambridge Plaza, a
95,019 square foot community center in Cambridge, OH, for
$1.375 million. The cash proceeds were used to pay down the
Company’s outstanding variable rate debt. Cambridge Plaza was
classified as held for sale at December 31, 2003 and the operating
results of the property were included in discontinued operations.



On February 23, 2004, the Company completed its offering to the public of 6,000,000 shares of 8.125% Series G Cumulative Redeemable
Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest. (the “Series G Preferred Shares”). Aggregate net proceeds of the offering were $145.3 million.
Distributions on the Series G Preferred Shares are payable quarterly in arrears beginning on April 15, 2004. The Company generally may
redeem the Series G Preferred Shares anytime on or after February 23, 2009, at a redemption price of $25.00 per share, plus accrued and
unpaid distributions. The proceeds were used to redeem the Series B Preferred shares on February 27, 2004 and to pay down $16.9 million of
the Company’s Credit Facility, which was recently drawn upon to pay off $17.0 million of subordinated mortgage debt relating to the
Company’s Great Mall of the Great Plains in Olathe, Kansas on February 9, 2004.

On February 27, 2004, the Company redeemed 5,118,000 shares of 9.25% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial
Interest (“the Series B Preferred Shares”). Shareholders of record at the close of business on February 27, 2004 received a redemption price of
$25.00 per share plus an amount equal to the dividends accrued and unpaid. The total cost to redeem the shares was $129,824.

The Company estimates that its redemption of the Series B Preferred Shares will result in a non-cash charge of approximately $4.8 million as
required under Emerging Issues Task Force Topic Number D-42, “The Effect on the Calculation of Earnings Per Share for the Redemption or
Induced Conversion of Preferred Stock”. This one time non-cash charge represents costs that were incurred and recorded in Additional Paid
In Capital at the time of the initial issuance of the Series B Preferred Shares in 1997.
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21. INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

(Year Ended December 31, 2003)

FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH

QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER

Total revenues $ 77,467 $ 70,569 $ 75,778 $ 93,063

Total revenues as previously reported $ 77,732 $ 70,820 $ 75,853 $ 93,118

Operating income $ 25,984 $ 16,750 $ 26,907 $ 36,958

Operating income as previously reported $ 26,009 $ 16,563 $ 26,886 $ 36,862

Income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of accounting change $ 5,564 $ (968) $ 6,450 $ 12,776

Net income $ 5,564 $ (968) $ 6,450 $ 12,776

Net income available to common shareholders $ 2,606 $ (3,927) $ 2,953 $ 8,502

Earnings per share (diluted) $ 0.08 $ (0.11) $ 0.08 $ 0.24

(Year Ended December 31, 2002)

FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH

QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER

Total revenues $ 60,384 $ 60,572 $ 66,839 $ 80,164

Total revenues as previously reported $ 70,184 $ 69,211 $ 70,794 $ 80,666

Operating income $ 22,975 $ 22,804 $ 23,866 $ 29,536

Operating income as previously reported $ 29,183 $ 28,048 $ 26,090 $ 29,499

Income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of accounting change $ 8,525 $ 6,104 $ 7,658 $ 13,967

Net income $ 8,525 $ 6,104 $ 7,658 $ 13,967

Net income available to common shareholders $ 5,566 $ 3,146 $ 4,700 $ 11,009

Earnings per share (diluted) $ 0.19 $ 0.10 $ 0.14 $ 0.32

Total revenues and operating income for 2003 and 2002 are restated to reflect SFAS 144. Net income available to shareholders reflects the
net gains and losses associated with the sale of discontinued operations. It also reflects the income and loss from discontinued operations.
The effect of these amounts to earnings per share – diluted was $(0.13) and $0.61 for 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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MARKET INFORMATION

The Common Shares of beneficial interest of the Company (the

“Common Shares”) are currently listed and traded on the New

York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “GRT.” On

March 8, 2004, the last reported sales price of the Common Shares

on the NYSE was $27.09. The following table shows the high and

low sales prices for the Common Shares on the NYSE for the 2003

and 2002 quarterly periods indicated as reported by the New York

Stock Exchange Composite Tape and the cash distributions per

Common Share paid by GRT with respect to each of such periods.

DISTRIBUTIONS PER 
QUARTER ENDED HIGH LOW COMMON SHARE

March 31, 2002 $ 19.06 $ 17.37 $ 0.4808

June 30, 2002 $ 20.34 $ 17.82 $ 0.4808

September 30, 2002 $ 19.10 $ 15.72 $ 0.4808

December 31, 2002 $ 18.55 $ 15.83 $ 0.4808

March 31, 2003 $ 20.20 $ 17.09 $ 0.4808

June 30, 2003 $ 23.37 $ 19.69 $ 0.4808

September 30, 2003 $ 23.44 $ 19.90 $ 0.4808

December 31, 2003 $ 23.51 $ 20.64 $ 0.4808

HOLDERS

The number of holders of record of the Common Shares was 1,041

of March 8, 2004.

DISTRIBUTIONS

Future distributions paid by GRT on the Common Shares will be

at the discretion of the trustees of GRT and will depend upon the

actual cash flow of GRT, its financial condition, capital

requirements, the annual distribution requirements under the

REIT provisions of the Code and such other factors as the trustees

of GRT deem relevant.

GRT has implemented a Distribution Reinvestment and Share

Purchase Plan under which its shareholders or Operating

Partnership unit holders may elect to purchase additional

Common Shares at fair value and/or automatically reinvest their

distributions in Common Shares at fair value. In order to fulfill its

obligations under the plan, GRT may purchase Common Shares in

the open market or issue Common Shares that have been

registered and authorized specifically for the plan. As of

December 31, 2003, 2,100,000 Common Shares were authorized 

of which 204,585 Common Shares have been issued.

CORPORATE OFFICES

150 East Gay Street

Columbus, OH 43215

614-621-9000

WEBSITE AND E-MAIL

Website: www.glimcher.com

E-mail: grtinfo@glimcher.com

TRANSFER AGENT & REGISTRAR

Computershare Investor Services

2 North LaSalle

P.O. Box A3504

Chicago, IL  60602

1-800-738-4931

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Columbus, Ohio

COUNSEL

Bryan Cave LLP

New York, New York

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTINGS

Glimcher Realty Trust common stock is traded on the New York
Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol: “GRT”.

The Company has two issues of preferred stock, both of which are
also traded on the NYSE under the symbols:

The Series F Preferred Shares “GRTPrF.”
The Series G Preferred Shares “GRTPrG.”

Trading of the Company’s Series B Preferred Shares 
(NYSE: GRTPrB) ceased on February 27, 2004, when the 
stock was called for redemption.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

The Company’s Annual Report and Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003 are available to shareholders without charge
upon request from our corporate offices, attention:
Carolee Oertel, Manager-Investor Relations.

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Glimcher Realty Trust’s annual meeting of shareholders will be
held on Friday, May 7, 2004, at 11:00 a.m. (ET) at Glimcher’s
corporate offices, 150 East Gay Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215
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